
























































































































































































































































































TREASURER'S REPORT 

-summary ol' lncome and Expenditures 
and Changes in General Fund Balance 

Year ended December 31, 1999 

Budget contributions 

"Operating expenditures 
Less: 

Income from publications 
Foreign missions Helping Hands 

funds for operating expenditures 
Foreign missions Seminary funds 

for operating expenditures 
Foreign missions excess expenditures 

funded from reserves 
"Truth for Youth" income used for expenditures 
Other grants and special funds 
Home missions special contributions 

for operating expenditures 
Home missions excess expenditures 

funded from reserves 
Net expenditures before 

interest income 

Interest income 

Net expenditures 

Net operating income (deficit) 

Other changes in General Fund Balance: 
Increases: 

Estates appropriated for debt reduction 
Special contribution for debt reduction 
Market value gains 
Matching funds for debt reduction 

Decreases: 
Payments on mortgages and loans 

Net increase - other changes 

Net increase for year 

General Fund Balance- December 31, 1998 

General Fund Balance- December 31, 1998 

$59,114.70 

91,893.30 

83,919.60 

392,661.43 
44,225.00 

147,483.36 

0.00 

522,799.40 
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$804,239.65 

$2,690,266.76 

1 ,342, 116.79 

1,348,151.97 

391,950.00 

956,201.97 

(151,962.32) 

77,829.33 
847.42 

228,184.37 
204,477.00 

(287,526.69) 
223,791.43 

71,829.11 

423,760.13 

$495,589.24 



REPORT OF THE 
EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

FOUNDATION 

The Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation meets concurrently with the 
quarterly meetings of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod Board of Trustees. 

At its annual meeting on August 10, 1999, the Evangelical Lutheran Synod 
Foundation elected the following officers: the Rev. George Orvick, president; the 
Rev. Craig Ferkenstad, secretary; Mr. Leroy Meyer, treasurer. These officers 
serve one-year terms. 

The Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation Committee is made up of four 
members elected to two-year terms. Mr. Robert Brown and Mr. Wilbur Lieske 
were elected in 1999. Mr. Leroy Meyer and the Rev. Richard Wiechmann were 
elected in 1998. The committee meets on the day before each quarterly meeting of 
the Board of Trustees and considers and makes recommendations to the 
Foundation regarding the investment of its assets and the use of the income from 
those investments. 

An accounting is found in the "Financial Statements and Accountant's 
Review Report." 

M1: Robert Brown, chairman 

REPORT OF THE 
YEAR2000 

SPECIAL OFFERING COMMITTEE 

"Christ the Same Yesterday, Today, and Forever- Celebrating 
2000 Years of Grace" 

The Year 2000 Special Offering Committee met twice during the year: 
in January 2000 in Kissimmee, FL; and in June 2000 in Mankato, MN. The 
members of the committee are: Mr. Herb Berg (Chairman), Pres. George Orvick, 
Pro£ Silas Born, Rev. Erwin Ekhoff, Prof. Adolph Harstad, Rev. David Lillegard, 
and Rev. Michael K. Smith (Secretary). 

The committee continued to make plans for the beginning of the two-year 
offering in 2000. At the 2000 synod convention an extensive presentation 
concerning the offering will be made to the attendees emphasizing the key goals 
and features of the offering through various media. Delegates and pastors will be 
invited to complete statements of intent for the offering. Guidelines for 
congregational organization oftheir own offering committees will be explained. 

It is planned that November 5, 2000, will be observed as the synod-wide kickoff 
date of the offering. Leading up to that date, a seven-part Bible study series will 
be available for use in congregations from September through November. The 
Bible studies will focus on the main portions of Pres. Gaylin Schmeling's 
convention essay, which will examine the history of the New Testament Church. 
Also during that period, three bulletin covers featuring three periods of church 
history will be available. for congregational use. It will be recommended that on 

Sunday, October 29, the Video Link featuring the offering be shown in 
congregations. 

The committee also acknowledges the support of Aid Association for Lutherans and 
Lutheran Brotherhood in meeting the administrative expenses of the 
offering. 

The committee looks forward to beginning this special celebration of God's 
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grace, especially as our synod responds through this offering with heartfelt 
thanks to expand our worldwide Gospel outreach. 

The Rev. Michael K. Smith, secretary 

MEMORIALS 

Subject: Lutheran Sentinel - Large Print Edition 
WHEREAS, The Lutheran Sentinel - Large Print Edition was introduced to the 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod in the June 1999 synod convention, and, 
WHEREAS, It contains relevant and timely articles for our day and age in large 

print so that the visually impaired can still read and stay abreast of the work 
in our beloved synod, and, 

WHEREAS, This publication is very informative and catechetical in nature for 
those who are visually impaired and unable to read regular text size print, 
therefore be it 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That we thank God for this opportunity to reach out in 
this way to another segment of our ELS membership, and, 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That we thank the Board for Publications for supporting 
this bold new venture, and, 

C. BE IT RESOLVED, That we encourage each congregation and pastor to 
identify those within the individual flock who would be appreciative 
recipients of this publication, sign them up, and submit their names for 
subscription, and, 

D. BE IT RESOLVED, That we encourage the Board for Publications to continue 
funding of the Large Print Edition of this publication as long as the need is 
evident and the costs conducive. 

submitted by: 
Saint Timothy Evangelical Lutheran Church, Williamsburg, Iowa 

Subject: Meditations For College Students 
WHEREAS, Northwestern Publishing House (NPH) sends a free one year 

subscription of "Meditations" to each college student whose name is 
submitted to them so that the student will continue in a devotional life with 
the Lord while away from home and attending school, and, 

WHEREAS, This devotional contains relevant and timely material for our day 
and age, including the college students, and, 

WHEREAS, Many college students have a difficult time establishing a personal 
devotional life because of other pressures exerted upon then1, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That the ELS officially thank NPH for their kind spiritual 
concern and offer to send a free one year subscription to each college student 
in the ELS, and, 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That we encourage all of our pastors to enter the names of 
all of our college students with NPH for this nurturing devotional throughout 
the year, and, 

C. BE IT RESOLVED, That we encourage our young men and women in 
undergraduate education to take advantage of this brief devotional daily as 
they continue walking as His blood-bought sheep. 

submitted by: 
Saint Timothy Evangelical Lutheran Church, Williamsburg, Iowa 
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Subject: Lutheran Heritage Foundation 
WHEREAS, The Evangelical Lutheran Synod has a "working relationship" with 

the Lutheran Heritage Foundation in some of the mission fields wherein we 
are cunently working, and, 

WHEREAS, The Lutheran Heritage Foundation, while claiming to be 
confessional Lutheran and not denominationally affiliated, is officially a 
"Recognized Service Organization" of the Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod 
(LC-MS), and, 

WHEREAS, The Executive Director of the Lutheran Heritage Foundation is a 
rostered clergy member of the LC-MS and thereby in full fellowship with said 
church body, and, 

WHEREAS, The ELS is not in Altm; Pulpit, and Prayer Fellowship with the LC­
MS nor with the Lutheran Heritage Foundation, and, 

WHEREAS, The Lutheran Heritage Foundation Board of Directors is made up of 
Lutherans of various church bodies with which the ELS is not in Altar, 
Pulpit, and Prayer Fellowship, and, 

WHEREAS, It only takes a little leaven to leaven the whole lump of dough and 
thus bring destruction through ecumenism or unionism by fellowshipping 
with those who are not likeminded in the faith with us and have no desire nor 
intention to be of the same theological framework and foundation, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That our continuing "working" relationship with the 
Lutheran Heritage Foundation be temporally restrained and halted, and, 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That our Doctrine Committee convene and study the issue 
of working with this organization as well as to how far our boundaries of 
fellowship and working with such organizations should proceed, and, 

C. BE IT RESOLVED, That our Doctrine Committee converse regarding this 
concern about the Lutheran Heritage Foundation with our sister Synod, the 
Wisconsin Evangelical Lutheran Synod (WELS), to see if they also have 
concerns and how they are dealing with the situation, and, 

D. BE IT RESOLVED, That a printed report then be prepared for the 2001 synod 
convention with ample time for study and discussion by all those assembled, 
and, 

E. BE IT RESOLVED, That the June 2001 Convention of the ELS sincerely 
attempt to make a determination regarding its future relationship and 
possible working parameters or boundaries specifically with the Lutheran 
Heritage Foundation and generally with other such organizations. 

submitted by: 
Saint Timothy Evangelical Lutheran Church, Williamsburg, Iowa 

Subject: Lay Members On The Committee On Worship 
WHEREAS, The Bylaws of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod call for a clergy/lay 

position on the Committee on Worship, and 
WHEREAS, Qualified laymen are available to serve, and 
WHEREAS, Present board members are all clergy, and 
WHEREAS, the Nominating Committee finds it difficult to nominate a layman to 

run against clergy, therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED, That two lay-only positions be established on the Committee 

on Worship. 
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Subject: Office of the ministry 
WHEREAS, the majority of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod members today who 

received their Catechism instruction from the 1940s to the 1960s used the 
"Synodical Conference Catechism" published by Concordia Publishing House 
in 1943, in which on pages 184-186 under the heading "The Office of the 
Ministry" the following two questions and answers explain what Scripture 
teaches concerning the Office of the Ministry: 

#275 How does the local congregation publicly administer the Office of the 
Keys? According to God's will the Christian congregation chooses and calls 
men as ministers who in the name of Christ and in the name of the 
congregation publicly pelform the functions of the Office of the Keys. (The 
pastoral office a divine institution, Acts 20:28; Eph. 4:10-12). Proof Texts: 1 
Cor. 4:1; Acts 20:28; 2 C01: 2:10; 1Tim. 2:11, 12. 
#276 How do the called ministers of Christ deal with us by His divine 
command? The called ministers of Christ preach the Word of God, 
administer the Sacraments, and through these means of grace offer and 
convey the forgiveness of sins. This is as valid, in heaven also, as if Christ, 
our dear Lord, dealt with us Himselt and 

WHEREAS, the subsequent ELS Catechisms printed in 1966 and 1981 retain 
the substance of the Synodical Conference edition in the following manner: 

ELS - 1966 #353 How does the Christian congregation publicly administer 
the Office of the Keys? According to God's will the Christian congregation 
chooses and calls men as ministers who in the name of Christ and on 
behalf of the congregation administer the Office of the Keys. Proof Texts: 1 
Cor. 4:1;Acts 20:28; 1Tim. 2:11, 12; Lk. 10:16. 
ELS - 1981 #297 How do Christians publicly administer the Office of the 
Keys? Christians publicly administer the Office of the Keys by calling 
qualified men to forgive and to retain sins on their behalf (office of the 
public ministry). Proof Texts: Titus 1:5; 1 Cor. 4:1; Acts 20:28; 1Tim. 2:11, 
12; Lk. 10:16. NOTE: In conclusion of the .Chapter 34 this is stated: "The 
layman announces such forgiveness on the basis of the office of the keys, 
which God has given to every Christian. The pastor announces such 
forgiveness on behalf of fellow Christians who have called him to be their 
shepherd, " and 

WHEREAS, the document entitled "The Office of the Public Ministry" prepared 
by the ELS Doctrine Committee especially in Theses 5 & 6 seems to 
contradict the understanding of the Office of the Ministry put forth in our 
Catechisms for at least the past 55 years, so that in supporting quotations 
used by the Doctrine Committee it is allowable to say "Lutheran 
schoolteachers are members of the clergy" (p. 4 of the Doctrine Committee's 
"Quotations Concerning the Public Ministry") which by logical extension 
would include saying that Sunday School and Vacation Bible School 
teachers, both male and female, are clergy, and 

WHEREAS, the Doctrine Committee in theses 5 & 6 introduces for the first time 
in the ELS the notion that the office of pastor is only one form among many 
in the public ministry and that our Lord speaking in Eph. 4:10-12 was only 
making suggestions to the Church what forms of ministry she might establish 
for herself, so that at the very worst this signals a departure from truths 
handed down to us by our synodical fathers and at the very least introduces 
new vocabulary which may cause confusion among our membership, and 

WHEREAS, it has been reported that colloquents meeting before the ELS 
Colloquy Committee in recent years have been shown the Doctrine 
committee Theses on The Office of the Public Ministry seeking their 
response, a...11d 

WHEREAS, it has been reported that students of our Bethany Lutheran 
Theological Seminary in recent years have been shown these Theses in class 
under a favorable presentation, and 
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WHEREAS, a committee is currently working on revising the 1981 ELS 
Catechism, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, that the Doctrine Committee,s document entitled "The 
Office of the Public Ministry" not be used in colloquy sessions with 
prospective pastors seeking entrance into the ELS but that the Colloquy 
Committee continues to use our common Catechism understanding and terms 
of expression in regard to the Office of the Public Ministry, and 

B. BE IT RESOLVED that the Doctrine Committee's Theses and study 
document on The Office of the Public Ministry not be taught in the Bethany 
Lutheran Theological Seminary but that the faculty continues to use our 
common Catechism understanding and terms of expression in regard to the 
Office of the Public Ministry as reflected in F. Pieper's Christian Dogmatics, 
and 

C. BE IT RESOLVED that any new edition of the ELS Catechism that is 
prepared does not reflect the new understanding and terms presented in the 
Doctrine Committee's document entitled "The Office of the Public Ministry" 
but that it retain what is currently included in the 1981 edition. 

submitted by the Rev. Glenn R. Obenberger 

Subject: Higher Education 
WHEREAS, Whereas the initial plan for making Bethany a four year institution 

included reference to the future preparation of called workers for our synod, and, 
WHEREAS, Teachers for our synod's parochial school are in limited supply, and, 
WHEREAS, At least two of our synod schools face closure in the near future for lack 

of teachers, and 
WHEREAS, The WELS is currently unable to fill even its own teacher vacancies, let 

alone help our synod with our teacher vacancies, therefore, 
A. BE IT RESOLVED, That Bethany College take not of this pressing need within the 

synod, and, 
B. BE IT RESOLVED, That the college administration determine expeditiously the 

feasibility of implementing a teacher training department within the college, and, 
C. BE IT RESOLVED, That such preliminary planning and research include the nec­

esswy course work to prepare future teachers not only for the teaching of the academic 
subjects, but also the course work necessary to provide a thorough preparation to equip 
these teachers to teach the necesswy religious course in catechesis, hymnolgoy and Bible 
histmy 

submitted by: 
St. Timothy Lutheran Church, Lombard, Illinois 

FINANCES 
ACTION OF THE SYNOD 

Resolution 1: Encouraging Awareness of Synodical Work 
WHEREAS, There is continuing concern to keep all members of the synod informed 

regarding our mutual work, and, 
WHEREAS, There is need to heep the stewardship message before the synod, therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the church councils and voters assemblies of the congrega­

tions be encouraged to heep the work of the synod on their agendas. 

Resolution 2: Report of the Board for Stewardship 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod accept the report of the Board for Stewardship 
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Resolution 3: Report of the Laymen Delegates Equalization Fund Committee 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod accept the report of the Laymen Delegates 

Equalization Fund Committee. 

Resolution 4: 2001 Budget 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod adopt the 2001 Budget. 

Resolution 5: Planning and Coordinating Committee 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod accept the report of the Planning and 

Coordinating Committee. 

Resolution 6: General Grants, Wills and Estates 
WHEREAS, In 1999 the synod received generous grants from AAL and Lutheran 

Brotherhood, and, 
WHEREAS, In 1999 the synod received substantial donations from the Edna 

Busekist estate, the Juel Natvig estate, the Esther Ordahl estate, and the Henry Tregner 
estate, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod thank our God for the additional gifts of grace, 
and, 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod extend thanks to AAL, Lutheran Brotherhood 
and the various estates for their charitable contributions to the work of the Lord through 
the synod. 

Resolution 7: Allocation of 2001 Program and Project Funds 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod adopt the recommended allocations of program 

and project funds. 

Resolution 8: Report of the Board of Trustees 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod accept the report of the Board of Trustees 

Resolution 9: Report of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Synod accept the report of the Evangelical Lutheran 

Synod Foundation 

Resolution 10: Special Offering 
WHEREAS, The Finance Floor Committee has reviewed the 2000 Years of Grace 

Thank Offering Committee report, therefore, 
A. BE IT RESOLVED, To encourage the synod's members to use the Bible study and 

other materials prepared for this special offering, and, 
B. BE IT RESOLVED, The synod's members be encouraged to observe November 5, 

2000 as the kick-off date for the special offering, and, 
C. BE IT RESOLVED, The synod accept the report of the 2000 Years of Grace Thank 

Offering Committee. 

Resolution 11: Treasurer's Report, 
WHEREAS, The Finance floor committee has reviewed the Treasurer's report and the 

Financial Statement and Accountants Review Report for the year ending Dec. 31, 1999 
by Wolf & Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod accept the treasurer's Report, 

MISCELLANEOUS 
ACTION OF THE SYNOD 

Resolution 1: Report of the Self Study Conunittee 
BE IT RESOLVED, That we adopt the proposed changes to the ELS Articles of 

Incorporation as recommended by the Self Study Committee, but with the following 
emendations to be noted: Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Evangelical Lutheran 
Synod, Article III, after "Constitution," add the words "and the Bylaws." In Article N, fol­
lowing "The Smalcald Articles," insert "Treatise on the Power and Primacy of the Pope." 
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Resolution 2: Report of the Self Study Committee 
BE IT RESOLVED, That we adopt the proposed changes to the Constitution and the 

Bylaws of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod. 

Resolution 3: Report of the Self Study Committee 
WHEREAS, The Self Study Committee recommends the following for the synod's con­

sideration and adoption, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That the position of synodical treasurer become a position 
appointed by the Board of Trustees as of August 1 in the year in which these amendments 
to the constitution are ratified. 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That the synodical treasurer be an advisory member of the 
Board of Trustees. 

C. BE IT RESOLVED, That the following guidelines apply to the office of synodical 
Treasurer 

A. Appointment and Duties: 
(cf Articles of Incorporation of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod, Article X). 
B. Salary: 
The Board of Trustees of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod shall establish the 
salary of the treasurer and shall review his pelformance and his salary on 
an annual basis. 

Resolution 5: Name Change 
WHEREAS, The name of the "Self Study Committee" could better reflect the ongoing 

purpose and duties of the committee, therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the name of the Self Study Committee be referred to the Self 

Study Committee. 

Resolution 6: Goals and Objectives: 2000-2005 
WHEREAS, The goals and objectives, the projects and programs for 2000-2005, as set 

forth by the Planning and Coordinating Committee, have been purused, 
BE IT RESOLVED, That we encourage all of the boards and committees to continue 

identifying specific long-range projects and programs. 

Resolution 7: 2001 Evangelical Lutheran Synod Convention 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the date of next year's convention be June 10-14, 2001. 

Secretary's Note: 
Synodical Guidelines. proposed by the Self-Study Committee, were adopted for: the 

Office of Missions Counselm; Board for Home Missions, Board for Foreign Missions, 
Clergy Roste1; General Rules and Regulations, when there is a pastor or teacher vacancy 
in a congregation, and for church related organizations. They will be published as a sep­
arate document when the revised ELS Handbook is completed (1999 Synod Report, page 
138, Resolution 7). 

MINUTES 
ACTION OF THE SYNOD 

Resolution 1: Secretary's Minutes 
WHEREAS, The Minutes Committee has heard the minutes of the secretary of the 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod for the activities held on Synod Sunday, June 11, 2000, as 
well as, the Monday (June 12, 2000) morning and afternoon business sessions, and found 
them to be correct. 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod adopt the minutes as read. 
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Resolution 2: Secretary's Minutes 
WHEREAS, The Minutes Committee has heard the minutes of the secretary of the 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod for the Tuesday, (June 13, 2000) morning and afternoon 
business sessions, and found them to be correct. 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod adopt the minutes as read. 

Resolution 3: Secretary's Minutes 
WHEREAS, The Minutes Committee has heard the minutes of the secretary of the 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod for the Wednesday, (June 14, 2000) morning and afternoon 
business sessions, and found them to be correct. 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the synod adopt the minutes as read. 

Resolution 4: Secretary's Minutes 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the President and Vice President of the synod be instructed 

to read and approve the secretary's minutes for Thursday, June 15, 2000 morning and 
afternoon sessions. 

PASTORAL CONFERENCE RECORDS 
ACTION OF THE SYNOD 

WHEREAS, Seven sets of conference minutes from around the synod were reviewd, 
and, 

WHEREAS, These records reveal comprehensive and well planned agendas involving 
worship, valuable theological presentations and discussions, questions of casuistry and 
synodical matters, demonstrating a strong focus on the Word of God, and, 

WHERAS, Pastoral Conferences promote pastoral fellowship, encouragement and 
growth and thus benefit the congregations of the synod, therefore, 

A. BE IT RESOLVED, That all pastoral conferences submit their records for review 
at each synodical convention, and, 

B. BE IT RESOLVED, That the Pastoral Conferences submitting records this year be 
commended for their efforts in planning and implementing their agendas, and, 

C. BE IT RESOLVED, That the congregations of the synod take an ongoing interest 
in, and support of, their pastors' attendance at the pastoral conferences. 

RESOLUTIONS 
ACTION OF THE SYNOD 

BE IT RESOLVED, That the following letters be approved. 
Letters of greeting have been sent to the following: 

Lutheran Evangelical Christian Church, Japan Mission 
Lutheran Evangelical Christian Church Seminary, Japan 
Ukrainian Lutheran Church 
Evanglisch-Lutherische Freikirke in Germany 
The Lutheran Confessional Church of Norway and Sweden 
Matthew Luttman, Plzen Mission 
RogerFalk 

Letters of condolence have been sent to the following: 
Family of Martin Galstad 
Family of Harvey Bell 
Family of Holger Ausen 
Family of !della Weyland 
Family of Carl Rusch 
Family of Jerome Gernander 

Letters of thanhs, recognizing years uf service, have been sent to the following: 
D1: B. W Teigen 
Rev. Walther Gullixson 
Rev. James Larson 
Rev. S¢ren S. Urberg 
Rev. James Ruppel 
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Wolf&Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

Board of Trustees 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod 
Mankato, Minnesota 

ACCOlJNTANTS' RE\TIEW REPORT 

2100 Clearwater Drive 
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523-1927 
(630) 545-4500 FAX: (630) 574-7818 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN SYNOD (a nonprofit corporation) as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related 
statements of changes in net assets, activities and cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with 
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. All information included in these financial statements is the representation 
of the management of the Evangelical Lutheran Synod. 

A review consists principally of inquiries of organization personnel and analytical procedures applied to 
fmancial data. It is substantially Jess in scope than an audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial 
statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Oak Brook, Illinois 
May26, 2000 

U~4~LLP 
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EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

Cash: 

Checking $ 293,209 $ 183,182 

Savings 1,978 1,929 

Accounts receivable 101,563 546,278 

Inventory of publications 47,974 61,287 

Prepaid expenses 4,210 9,767 

Loans receivable (Notes 3 and 7) 3,605,577 2,803,891 

Investment management funds (Note 4) 11,323,825 10,036,759 

Notes receivable 262,650 268,162 
Real estate and buildings (Note 5) 36,105,353 26,819,061 

Total assets $ 51,746,339 $ 40,730,316 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 149,012 $ 43,228 

Accrued interest 5,092 5,069 

Notes payable (Note 6): 

Working capital 100,000 100,000 

Investment program 516,373 519,994 

Life Loan Plan 47,059 47,029 
Mortgages payable (Note 7) 1,095,268 959,608 

Total liabilities 1,912,804 1,674,928 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted 957,161 t:..Qt:. f\'7'7 
vuv,vtt 

Temporarily restricted (Note 8) 7,950,171 6,948,113 
Permanently restricted (Note 8) 40,926,203 31,421,198 

Total net assets 49,833,535 39,055,388 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 51,746,339 $ 40,730,316 

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report. 
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EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 
STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

For the Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Balances, December 31, 1997 $ 363,941 $6,096,391 $ 28,310,034 $ 34,770,366 

Increase in net assets for 1998 322,136 851,722 52,188 1,226,046 

Additions and improvements to real estate at 
Bethany Lutheran College, funded by gifts 
and grants to College, net of depreciation 
and disposals (Note 5) 3,058,976 3,058,976 

Balances, December 31, 1998 686,077 6,948,113 31,421,198 39,055,388 

Increase in net assets for 1999 271,084 1,002,058 507,400 1,780,542 

Additions and improvements to real estate at 
Bethany Lutheran College, funded by gifts 
and grants to College, net of depreciation 
and disposals (Note 5) 8,997,605 8,997,605 

Balances, December 31, 1999 $ 957,161 $7,950,171 $ 40,926,203 $ 49,833,535 

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report. 
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EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
1999 1998 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 

Revenues, gains and other support: 
Contributions: 

Budgetary $ 780,299 $ 23,940 $ $ 804,239 $ 786,095 
Estate and trust 233,488 233,488 551,577 
Special purpose: 

Betl1a11y Lutheran College 1,955 
Bethany Lutheran Seminary 3,601 3,601 47,604 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod 

Foundation 745 745 968 
Foreign missions 345,023 345,023 374,015 
Aid Association for Lutherans 31,630 31,630 28,500 
Lutheran Brotherhood 52,500 52,500 40,000 
Helping Hands 22,544 22,544 58,961 
Matching funds 204,477 598,129 802,606 1,306,698 
Others 847 148,916 50 149,813 103,183 

Investment income 336,180 513,005 849,185 785,422 
Investment income - President's Office 

Endowment 55,770 55,770 55,829 
Publications income 59,115 5,656 64,771 60,518 
Realized and unrealized gains 

on investments 271,761 451,495 494,805 1,218,061 16,157 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Satisfaction of program restrictions 1,470,113 (1,462,587) (7,526) 

3,412,050 733,857 488,074 4,633,981 4,217,482 

Expenses: 
Bethany Lutheran College 180,745 180,745 273,862 
Bethany Lutheran Seminary 206,937 206,937 94,833 
Home missions 725,699 725,699 591,441 
Foreign missions 734,494 734,494 1,083,590 
Publications 85,628 85,628 101,961 
Evangelism 24,237 24,237 60,657 
Christian service 92,886 92,886 75,062 
Education and youth 93,344 93,344 82,254 
Synod Fund 672,999 672,999 602,230 
Other programs and costs 36,470 36,470 25,546 
House improvements and acquisitions 268,201 (268,201) 
Debt paid from unrestricted funds 19,326 (19,326) 

3,140,966 (268,201) (19,326) 2,853,439 2,991,436 

Increase in net assets $ 271,084 $ 1,002,058 $ 507,400 $ 1,780,542 $ 1,226,046 

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report. 
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Cash flows from operating activities: 
Increase in net assets 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 

Market value gains 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
Decrease in inventory of publications 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increase in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Loans to congregations 
Repayment of loans 
Land improvements 
House renovation and acquisition 
Seminary additions 
Reduction of notes receivable 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from mortgages 
Repayment of investment plan notes - net of additions 
Debt paid 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Consisting of the following: 

Checking 
Savings 

SuPJllemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid for interest 

See accompanying notes and accountants' review report. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

For the Year Ended 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

1,780,542 $ 1,226,046 

(1,218,061) (16,157) 
444,715 354,969 

13,313 22,662 
5,557 (3,744) 

105,784 21,707 
23 (41) 

1,131,873 1,605,442 

(69,005) (1 ,542,918) 
(935,000) (56,021) 
133,314 164,695 

(1,160) (5,766) 
(268,201) 

(4,801) 
5,512 4,990 

(1,134,540) (1,439,821) 

180,000 
(3,591) 4,565 

(63,666) (176,647) 

112,743 (172,082) 

110,076 (6,461) 

185,111 191,572 

295,187 $ 185,111 

293,209 $ 183,182 
1,978 1,929 

295,187 $ 185,111 

128,045 $ 135,082 



EVANGELICAL LUTIIERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

1. Organization and Operations 

The Evangelical Lutheran Synod (the 
1 
"Synod") is a national organization of Lutheran 

congregations. The Synod's purpose is to provide programs and support for various church 
purposes such as evangelism, missions, education, Bethany Lutheran College, and Bethany 
Lutheran Seminary. The Synod holds title to the property used by both Bethany Lutheran 
College and Seminary, for which nominal rent is received. 

The Synod is a not-for-profit organization and is exempt from income taxes under 
Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The Synod reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets. 

Contributions 

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently 
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Support 
that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction 
expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. The Board also may 
contribute to restricted net assets, in the form of additions or improvements to assets restricted to 
specific purposes. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the. reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Eqyivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Synod considers all unrestricted highly liquid 
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less, excluding investment management 
accounts, to be cash equivalents. 
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EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

2. Summary ofSi~mificant Accounting Policies (Cont.) 

Inventory 

Inventory consists of publications held for sale and are reported at lower of cost or market. 

Investments 

Investments in managed accounts are reported at current market value. 

3. Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable consist of various secured and unsecured loans to member congregations. 
Interest is at various rates. The loans are primarily made to finance construction or similar 
projects. Activity during 1999 and 1998 was as follows: 

Outstanding loans, beginning 
Loans made 
Loans collected 

Outstanding loans, ending 

4. Investments 

1999 

$ 2,803,891 
935,000 

(133,314) 

$ 3,605,577 

1998 

$ 2,912,565 
56,021 

(164,695) 

$ 2,803,891 

Investments consist of various investment management accounts. The accounts include 
securities and various funds, including U.S. Treasuries, corporate bonds, domestic and foreign 
equities, cash funds, and futures contracts. 

Investments at December 31 are comprised of the following: 

1999 1998 

U.S. Treasury instruments and Treasury funds $ 49,704 $ 49,266 
Corporate bonds and bond funds 2,908,686 3,311,146 
Domestic equities and equity funds 6,240,730 4,012,317 
Foreign equity funds 55,190 
Real estate funds 792,000 792,000 
Short-term money funds and other 1,332,705 1,816,840 

$ 11,323,825 $ 10,036,759 
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4. 

5. 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

Investments (Cont.) 

As of December 31 investments were allocated as follows: 

1999 

Unrestricted $ 2,648,135 
Temporarily restricted 4,766,390 
Permanently restricted (endowments) 3,909,300 

$ 11,323,825 

Real Estate and Buildings 

1998 

$ 1,999,795 
3,724,797 
4,312,167 

$ 10,036,759 

The Synod owns real estate, equipment and buildings leased to Bethany Lutheran College and 
Bethany Lutheran Seminary, related tax exempt organizations. Amounts shown for the College 
are from its audited balance sheets at June 30, 1999 and 1998. Additions and improvements to 
College facilities totaled $10,177,043 and $3,954,817 during the College's 1999 and 1998 fiscal 
years, and were primarily paid from private gifts and grants received by the College. The Synod 
also owns six residences occupied by Synod, College and Seminary officials. A summary of real 
estate included in the balance sheet at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is as follows: 

1999 1998 

College property, plant and equipment, at cost $ 41,385,098 $ 31,208,055 
Less accumulated depreciation (8,404,811) (7 ,209 ,327) 
Less obligations of the College, secured 

by real eijf,ate (43,105) (78,477) 

32,937,182 23,920,251 
Seminary real estate, at cost 2,395,086 2,395,086 
Residence, primarily at cost 580,045 311,844 

35,912,313 26,627,181 
Land for missions 193,040 191,880 

$ 36,105,353 $ 26,819,061 
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Notes Payable 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

The working capital note is a 6% unsecured demand Joan from a congregation. 

Investment program notes are unsecured amounts loaned by individuals, congregations and 
organizations for varying periods at interest rates ranging principally from zero to 6%. 

Life Loan Plan notes are unsecured amounts loaned by individuals at interest rates from zero to 
6%. 

Mortgages Payable 

Mortgages payable at December 31 consist of the following: 

Payable to Aid Association for Lutherans, due in monthly 
payments of $2,723 including interest at 8%. Secured by 

Joan to congregation. 

Payable to Marvin M. Schwan Charitable Foundation, 
dated May 1997, in the amount of $400,000, due in 
monthly installments of $3,823, including interest at 8%. 
Secured by Joan to congregation. 

Payable to Aid Association for Lutherans, dated May 
1995 in the amount of $285,000. Due in monthly 
payments of $2,384 including interest at 8%. Secured by 
Joan to congregation. 

Mortgage payable, secured by residence, payable in 
monthly installments of $965 including interest at 10%. 

Payable to Marvin M. Schwan Charitable Foundation, 
dated October 1999, in the amount of $180,000, due in 
monthly installments of $1,851, including interest at 7%. 

Secured by loan to congregation. 
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1999 1998 

$ 270,015 $ 280,294 

360,340 376,668 

229,680 239,484 

57,650 63,162 

177,583 

$ 1,095,268 $ 959,608 



EVANGELICAL LUTIIERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

7. Mortgages Payable (Cont.) 

Future maturities of mortgages payable at December 31, 1999 are as follows: 

2000 $ 55,638 
2001 60,295 
2002 65,346 
2003 70,824 
2004 76,767 

Thereafter 766,398 

$ 1,095,268 

8. Narur~ Qf Fund R~striQtiQn~ 

Temporarily restricted funds at December 31 consist of the following programs: 

1999 

Partners in the Gospel unexpended income $ 
Other Home Missions unexpended income 90,006 
Matching funds for Seminary construction 80,304 
General Foreign Mission Fund 93,971 
Other Foreign Mission unexpended funds 1,097,467 
Charitable Gift Annuity Fund 236,688 
Home Mission Reserve Fund 214,500 
Home Mission Expansion Fund 3,773,164 
Challenge Fund 
Foreign Mission Seminary Endowment Fund 1,352,508 
His Truth for Our Youth unexpended income 56,511 
Others 101,305 
Residences 522,395 
Matching funds 331,352 

$ 7,950,171 
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1998 

$ 32,788 
352,708 
196,673 
83,294 

929,724 
153,689 
185,292 

3,086,439 
6,653 

1,198,851 
69,689 

100,138 
248,682 
303,493 

$ 6,948,113 



EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL SIATEMENIS (Cont.) 

(See Accountants' Review Report) 

8. Nature of Fund Restrictions (Cont.) 

9. 

Permanently restricted funds at December 31 consist of the following programs: 

1999 1998 

Church Extension and Loan Fund $ 438,595 $ 393,287 
Marvin and Delores Schwan Foreign Mission 

Trust Fund 796,664 706,156 
Partners in the Gospel Home Missions Fund 1,964,856 1,869,486 
His Truth for Our Youth 500,379 443,531 
Merle R. Aasen Estate - Missions 13,280 11,771 
Merle R. Aasen Seminary Scholarship Fund 7,073 
President's Office Endowment Fund 861,433 770,429 
Whipple-Olson-Wilson Endowment Fund 133,432 118,273 
Board of Trustees - Donated Funds 885,296 785,855 
Bethany College property 32,937,182 23,920,251 
Bethany Seminary property 2,395,086 2,395,086 

$ 40,926,203 $ 31,421,198 

Contingencies 

The Synod is contingently liable as a guarantor on mortgage loans for Bethany (Port Orchard, 
Washington), Bethany (Ames, Iowa), Our Savior (Lakeland, Florida), Christ (Windsor, 
California) and New Life (Sebring, Florida) congregations. 

10. Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Synod to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash, mutual funds, bonds and marketable securities. The Synod places 
substantially all of its cash and liquid investments with high-quality financial institutions and 
limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution; however, cash balances may 
periodically exceed federally insured limits. There were no uninsured cash balances at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. Marketable securities and other investments, consisting of both 
debt and equity instruments, are placed in a variety of managed funds administered by different 
investment managers in order to limit credit risk. As of December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
management considers the Synod to have no significant concentration of credit risk. 
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BALANCE SHEET EXHIBIT I 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod- Mankato, Minnesota 
December 31, 1999 

BETHANY EVANGELICAL 
CHURCH BETHANY LUTHERAN RESIDENCES LUTHERAN 

GENERAL EXTENSION AND LUTHERAN THEOLOGICAL AND REAL SYNOD 
ASSETS FUND(01) LOAN FUND(02). COLLEGE(03) SEMINARY(04) ESTATE(05) FOUNDATION TOTAL 

Cas~ - ~hecking ~ccount $293,209.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $293,209.00 
Accou~s reCeiVa~le .- contri~utions 

and other income 101,563.33 0.00 0.00 o.cio 0.00 0.00 101,563.33 
Inventory of publtcations 47,974.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47,974.47 
Prepaid expenses 4,209.85 O.QJ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,209.85 
Investments: 

Investment management accounts 2,186,562.57 408,961.61 o.cxi 0.00 0.00 8,728,300.98 11 ,323,825.16 
Savings accounts and CO's 1,9n.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,9n.66 
Money market funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Loan~ receivable from con~regattons 0.00 1 ,406,041.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 2, 199,!;35.35 3,605,577.23 
NOteS receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.i:xl 262,649.62 262,649.62 

Real oOtato and buildings (Notss B and C) 0.00 0.00 32,937,162.00 2,395,086.53 580,044.26 193,039.92 38,105,352.71 
2,635,496.88 1,815,003.49 32,937,182.00 2,395,086.53 580,044.26 11 ,353,526.87 51,746,339.03 

Due from (to) other funds 85,143.16 0.00 0.00 O.cio 0.00 i85,143.16) 0.00 

Total assets $2,720,640.04 $1,815,003.49 $32,937,182.00 $2,395,086.53 $580,044.26 $11 ,298,382. 71 $51 ,746,339.03 

>-' LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES "' w 

Llabil~les: 
Noles payable: (Note D) 

Working capital $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 
Investment program 0.00 516,373.17 0.00 0.00 o.cxi 0.00 516,373.17 
Life Loan Plan 47,059.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47,059.15 

Accounts payable 149,012.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 149,012.24 
Accrued interest payable 5,091.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,091.80 
Unexpended restricted income (Note E) 1,746,304.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,746,304.92 
Mortgages payable 177,562.69 880,035.48 0.00 0.00 57,649.62 0.00 1 ,095,267. 79 

Totalllabil~les 2,226,050.80 1 ,376,408.65 0.00 0.00 57,649.62 0.00 3,659,109.07 

Fund balances: 
Unrestrk:ted: 

DeSiiinalsd for investment 0.00 438,594.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,346688.32 1,785,453.16 
UndOsignatsd 495.569.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 495,569.24 

495,569.24 438,594.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 ,346,688.32 2,261,052.40 
Restricted (Note F) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,951 ,514.39 9,951,514.39 
Net investment in real sstate 

and buildings 0.00 0.00 32,937,182.00 2,395,086.53 522,394.64 0.00 35,854,663.17 

T olaf fund balances 495,569.24 438,594.64 32,937,182.00 2,395,086.53 522,394.64 11 ,298,382. 71 48,087,229.96 
T otalllabil~les ahd 

fund balaricM $2,720,640.04 $1,815,003.49 $32,937,182.00 $2,395,086.53 $580,044.26 $11,298,382.71 $51,746,339.03 





SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Minnesota 
Year ended December 31, 1999 

INCOME 
Coolfibutions: 

Eudgetary: 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Estate and trust income: 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

For special purposes: 
Bethany Lutheran College special 
Bethany Lutheran Seminary special 
Bethesda Lutheran Home 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation 
Faith Mission Society 
Foreil)n missions special 
Home missions special 
Lutheran Brotherhood: 

Ev:;~ngelism 

Year 2000 offering 
Aid Association for Lutherans: 

Celebrate 2000 
Video Link 
Visitor mrl<shop 
Pastoral conference 

'Wor1d Needs" 
"Helping Hands" 
"Thoughts of Faith" 
"Messengers of Peace" 
Matching funds 
Miscellaneous 
WELS Lutherans for Life 

Total contributions- carried forward 

$23,940.47 
780,299.18 

5.00 
2,785.07 

75.00 
100,279.48 

300.00 
345,022.72 

16,244.54 

40,000.00 
12,500.00 

12,500.00 
10,000.00 
7,500.00 
1,629.81 

17,811.72 
22,544.40 

4,977.89 
815.66 

802,606.00 
1,046.00 

176_00 
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EXHIBIT Ill 
(Page 1 of3) 

$804,239.65 

0.00 
233,488.04 

1,398,819.29 
2,436,546.98 



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ACTJVJTJES -CONTINUED 
Evangelieal Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Minnesota 
Year ended December31, 1999 

Total contributions- brought forward 

Investment income: 
Restricted: 

Merle R. Aasen Estate 
Merle R. Aasen Seminary Scholarship Fund 
President's Office Endowment Fund 
"Helping Hands" 
"Partners in the Gospel" 
W-O-W Fund 
Foreign Mission Seminary Fund 
General Foreign Mission Fund 
Home missions reserves 
Home Missions SS Endowment Fund 
Pre-School Endowment Fund 
'Truth for Our Youth" 

Unrestricted: 
Loans receivable 
NOW checking account 
Unrestricted endowment 
Other 

Total investment income 
Total income from all sources 

Less income for special purposes 
Total income available for current purposes­

carried foPNard 
EXP-ENDIT-URES 

Be!hany LYiheran College 
13ethany Lutheran Seminary 
Home missions 
Foreign missions 
Education and youth 
Evangelism 
Christian service 
Publications 
Synod fund 
Capiiai 
'World Needs" 
Evangelism grant 
Pension plan 
Visitor IM)rkshop 
Missiology seminars 
Video link 

Total expenditures- carried forward 

166 

$823.95 
247.56 

55,769.70 
49,430.90 

111,966.23 
8,279.11 

83,919.60 
5,830.60 

227,039.56 
153.65 
350.00 

31,047.16 

94,151.93 
5,066.06 

77,966.42 
158,993.89 

176,000.04 
62,499.96 

693,799.40 
734,494.33 
93,343.71 
24,236.59 
25,636.12 
85,628.47 

630,665.67 
22,481.11 
19,500.00 
31,900.00 
47,750.00 

5,752.54 
26,580.82 
10,000.00 

2,690,266.76 

EXHIBIT !II 
(Page2of3) 

$2,436,546.98 

911,038.32 
3,347,585.30 

1,917,907.61 

1,429,677.69 



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES -CONTINUED 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Minnesota 
Year ended December 31, 1999 

Total income available for current purposes­
brought foJWard 

Total expenditures- brought foJWard 

Less expenditures financed by special funds: 
Home missions grants and reserves 
Foreign missions reserves 
"Helping Hands" Fund 
Foreign Mission Seminary 

Endowment Fund income 
'World Needs" Fund 
Missiology seminars 
Video link 
''Truth for Our Youth" income 
Pension plan 
Youth V'.{)rk grant 
Evangelism grant 
Visitor V'.{)rkshop 
Christian service grant 

Publications income 
ExpeAditures finaRC-e<l byiAOOme 

available for current purposes 

Excess of expenditures over income 

APPROPRIATED BY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Portion of unrestricted estates: 

F.or General FJJ!ld..deb!..reduclion 
To Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation 

Excess of expenditures and appropriations 

$522,799.40 
392,681.43 

91,893.30 

83,919.60 
19,500.00 
26,580.82 
10,000.00 
44,225.00 
47,750.00 

6,000.00 
31,900.00 
5,752.54 

0.00 
1.283,002.09 

5B,114.7D 

over income- (decrease) in General Fund balance 
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$2,690,268.76 

1,342, 116.79 

77,829.33 
155,658.71 

EXHIBIT Ill 
(Page 3 of 3) 

$1,429,677.69 

1,348,151.97 

81,525.72 

233,488.04 

($151,962.32) 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod- Mankato, Mimesota 
December31, 1999 

(A) Summary of significant accOI.Ilting policies: 

The financial statements have been prepared on 1he accrual basis. The 
si\Tiificant accOI.Ilting policies followed are described below to improve 1he 
usefulness of 1he financial statements. 

These financial statements are presented in accordance wi1h 1he principles 
of fund accOI.Ilting. Resot.rces for various ptrposes are classified for 
accounting and reporting p<rposes into funds according to 1heir na1ure and 
p<rpose. 

The General Fund represents resources available for current operating 
ptrposes. 

The Church Extension and Loan Fund represents resources used for loans to 
congregations for building and improvement programs. 

The Be1hany Lu1heran Theological Seminary and Residences and Real Estate 
funds represent 1he investment of 1he Synod in 1hese physical properties. 
The Be1hany Lu1heran College fund is explained fur1her in Note (8). 

The Evangelical Lu1heran Synod Foundation is an "endowment" fund established 
by 1he Synods· Board of Trustees. In addition to donations specified for 
1he Foundation, one-third of Lrldesignated trust and estate income is 
appropriated to 1he FOLrldation each year. 

No provision is made for depreciation of equipment and ft.rrl1ure. 
The cost of such items is charged to operations in 1he year incurred. 

(B) The value shown for Be1hany Lu1heran College is based on 1he net investment in 
plant as shown for 1he plant fund in 1he College's audit report as of June 
30, 1999. The current, endowment and reserve funds of 1he College are not 
included in 1he assets· of 1he Synod. The amount of $32,937,182.00 was 
determined as follows: 

Per audit report of 1he College as of Jlrle 30, 1999: 
Total invested in plant 
Less obligations of 1he plant fund 

Total net investment in plant- June 30, 1999 
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$32,980,287.00 
43,105.00 

$32,937,182.00 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Mimesota 
December 31 , 1999 

{C) Residences and real estate have been stated at cost or acquisition in 1966 and 
subsequent years. Acquisitions prior to 1966 are recorded at appraisal values. 
The values may be summarized as follows: 

VALUATION METHOD 
Cost 

NUMBER 
5 

Appraisal - internal 1 

Totals 6 

{D) Notes Payable: 

{E) 

The working capital note is an 6% demand loan from a congregation. 

Investment program notes are amounts loaned by individuals, congregations and 
organizations for varying periods at interest rates ranging principally from 
zeroto6%. 

Life Loan Plan notes are amounts loaned by individuals at interest rates from 
zeroto6%. 

Unexpended Restricted Income: 
Estates for home missions programs 
other home missions unexpended restricted income 
Estates for foreign missions programs 
other foreign missions unexpended restricted income 
Grants 
Truth for Youth Fund income 
"Messengers of Peace" funds 
Matching fmds 
other 
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EXHIBIT IV 
{Page 2 of 3) 

AMOUNT 
$550,744.26 

29,300.00 

$580,044.26 

$86,295.11 
2,805.16 

467,008.81 
629,578.14 

43,931.92 
56,510.93 
80,304.24 

305,763.22 
74,107.39 

$1,746,304.92 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -CONTINUED 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Mimesota 
December 31 , 1999 

(F) Fund Balances- Restricted- Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation: 

Merle R. Aasen Estate (to be invested permanently 
with income used for missions) 

Presidenfs Office Endowment Fund 

Marvin and Delores Schwan Foreign Mission Trust Fund 

Partners in the Gospel Home Missions Fund 

Whipple-Olson-Wilson Endowment Fund 

Foreign Mission Seminary Endowment Fund 

General Foreign Mission Fund 

Charitable Gift Annuity Fund 

Home Mission Reserve Fund 

Home Mission Expansion Fund 

75th Amiversary Fund- "His Truth for Our Youth" 

Pre-school Endowment Fund 

(G) The Evangelical Lutheran Synod is contingently liable as co-signor on mortgage 
loans for Bethany (Port Orchard, Washington), Our Savior (Lakeland, Florida), 
Bethany (Ames, Iowa), New Ufe (Sebring, Florida) and Christ (Windsor, California). 

170 

EXHIBIT IV 
(Page3 of3) 

$13,280.13 

861,432.43 

796,663.61 

1 ,964,855. 71 

133,431.60 

1 ,352,508.49 

93,970.83 

236,687.94 

214,499.89 

3,773,163.84 

500,379.30 

10,640.62 

$9,951,514.39 



LOANS RECEIVABLE SCHEDULE A 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod~ Mankato, Minnesota 
Year ended December 31, 1999 

Church Extension and Loan Fund RECLASSIFICATIONS/ 
TOTAL BALANCE NEW LOANS PAID TOTAL BALANCE 
LOANS 12/31198 1999 1999 PAID 12/31199 

CONGREGATION 
Bethany - Ames, Iowa $2,162.21 $512.21 $0.00 $512.21 $2,162.21 $0.00 
Faith -Oregon, Wisconsin: 

Church 155,500.62 105,368.75 0.00 1,513.42 51,645.29 103,855.33 
Parsonage 55,143.02 30,062.32 0.00 3,290.53 38,371.33 26,771.69 

Geed Shepherd- Richardson, Texas 384,977.59 130,524.73 0.00 525.45 254,978.31 129,999.28 
Grace - Crookston, Minnesota 53,945.76 38,292.25 0.00 1,406.19 29,060.70 34,886.05 
Hope- West Jordan, Utah 186,203.42 179,863.33 0.00 0.00 6,340.09 179,863.33 
Lakewood- Tacoma, Washington 15,500.00 201.02 0.00 201.02 15,500.00 0.00 
Our Redeemer- Yelm, Washington 15,000.00 5,522.50 0.00 1,023.00 10,500.50 4,499.50 
Peace - Kissimmee, Florida 414,406.72 329,256.15 0.00 9,415.89 94,568.46 319,840.26 
Resurrection -Winter Haven, Florida 479,322.97 362,297.73 0.00 12,782.86 129,808.10 346,514.87 
Saved by Grace - Gresham, Oregon 329,953.69 260,676.70 0.00 13,515.61 79,792.60 247,161.09 
Trinity- Rogers City, Michigan 49,000.00 20,584.62 0.00 10,934.05 39,346.53 9,650.47 

$2,158,119.00 $1 ,461,162.21 $0.00 $55,120.33 $762,077.12 $1,406,041.86 

..... Evan9!'!lical Lutheran S:mod Foundation 
__, 
..... Partners in the Gose:el Home Missions Fund 

Christ- Windsor, California $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 
Family of God - Riviera, Arizona 127,800.00 93,000.07 0.00 7,238.68 42,038.61 85,761.39 
Good Shepherd - Brownsburg, Indiana 74,500.00 37,550.66 0.00 4,792.36 41,711.70 32,788.30 
Grace - Hebard, Indiana 155,000.00 0.00 155,000.00 0.00 0.00 155,000.00 
Parkland -Tacoma, Washington 700,000.00 0.00 700,000.00 0.00 0.00 700,000.00 
Redeemer - Scottsdale, Arizona 308,06244 282,192.07 0.00 12,618.54 38,488.91 269,573.53 

$1,445,362.44 $412,742.80 $936,000.00 $24,619.58 $122,239.22 $1,323,123.22 

Home Mission Reserve Fund 
Saved by Grace~ Gresham, Oregon $97,500.00 $65,994.92 $0.00 $3,289.93 $34,795.01 $62,704.99 

Home Mission Expansion Fund 
Abiding Word - Bowling Green, Ohio $130,000.00 $117,775.48 $0.00 $11,664.70 $23,889.22 $106,110.78 
Christ the King, Green Bay, Wisconsin 200,000.00 187,440.59 0.00 9,690.22 22,249.53 177,750.37 
Lord of L~e. Holland, Michigan 180,000.00 171,070.34 0.00 5,922.22 14,851.88 155,146.12 
Peace ~ Lakeland, Florida 407,131.00 387,705.15 0.00 23,007.28 42,433.13 384,697.87 

$917,131.00 $863,991.56 $0.00 $50,284.42 $103,423.86 $813,707.14 



BALANCE SHEET AND SCHEDULE 8 

CHANGES IN FUND BAL.tlNCES Page 1 of3 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation 
Year ended December 31, 1999 

MERLE R. MARVIN AND WHIPPLE-
AASEN PRESIDENT'S DELORES SCHWA~ PARTNERS IN OLSON-

MERLE R. SEMINARY OFFICE FOREIGN THE GOSPEL WILSON 
AASEN SCHOLARSHIP ENDOWMENT MISSION TRUST HOME MISSIONS ENDOWMENT 

ASSET:~ ESTATE(07) FUND{08) FUND(09) FUND(10) FUND(11) FUND(12) 

Investments: 
Investment management accounts $13,280.13 $0.00 $803,782.81 $796,663.61 $377,5QP.08 $133,431.60 
Loans receivablf11 from r~ol'lgregations 0.00 ci.cx:i 0.00 0.00 1 ,323,123.22 0.00 
Notes receivable o.oci d.oci 57,649.62 0.00 184,000.00 0.00 
Land 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,227.41 0.00 

13,280.13 0.00 861,432.43 796,663.61 1,964,865.71 133,431.60 
Due from (to) other funds 0.00 d.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL ASSETS $13,280.13 $0.00 $861,432.43 $796,663.61 $1 ,964,865. 71 $133,431.60 

LIABILITIIoS -.-.-.-

Notes payable $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
,... _, 

FUNDBALAI~ 

"" 
BalanCes- December 3~, 1~198 11,770.67 7,073.03 770,428.60 706,155.76 1 ,869,486.41 118,273.02 
Add: 

Bequests 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Contributions - net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 744.48 0.00 
Income 623.95 247.55 55,769.70 49,430.60 111,986.23 8,279.11 

less income distrib1.rted (823.95) (247.56) {55,769.70) {49,43b.9i:J) (111 ,986.23) (8,279.11) 
Estates appropriated by 

Board of Trustees 0.00 .0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Annuity amortization 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Distributions 0.00 (7,526.08) 0.00 o.ob 0.00 0.00 
Mark.et value gains 1,509.48 453.03 91,003.63 60,507.86 94,624.82 15,158.58 

1,509.49 (7,073.03) 91,003.63 60,507.85 95,369.30 15,J58.58 
Balance~- December 31, 1999 13,280.13 0.00 861,432.43 796,663.61 1 ,964,865. 71 133,431.60 

TOTAL LIABILITI!=:S & FUND BALANC.ES $13,280.13 $0.00 $861 ,432.43 $796,663.61 $1,964,865.71 $133,431.60 



BALANCE SHEET AND SCHEDULE B 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Page2 of3 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation 
Year ended December 31 , 1999 

RESTRICTED 
FOREIGN 75TH 
MISSION GENERAL HOME HOME ANNIVERSARY 

SEMINARY FOREIGN CHARITABLE MISSION MISSION TRUTH FOR 
ENDOWMENT MISSION GIFT ANNUITY RESERVE EXPANSION OUR YOUTH 

ASSETS FUND(13) FUND(14) FUND(15) FUND(16) FUND(18) FUND(20) 

Investments: 
Investment management accounts $1,352,508.49 $93,970.83 $310,831.10 $151,794.90 $2,849,644.113 $500,379.30 
Loans receivable from congregations 0.00 0.00 0.00 62,704.99 813,707.14 0.00 
Notes receivable 0.00 0.00 11,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Land 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112,812.51 0.00 

1 ,352,508.49 93,970.83 321,831.10 214,499.89 3, 773,163.84 500,379.30 
Due from (to) other funds 0.00 0.00 (85, 143. 16) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL ASSETS $1 ,352,508.49 $93,9J:E.83 $236,687.94 $214,499.89 $3,773,183.84 $500,379.30 

LIABILITIES 

Notes payable $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

..... ...., 
"' 

FUND BALANCES 

Balances ~ December 31 , 1998 1 '199,851.45 83,294.28 153,689.31 185,291.64 3,085,438.77 443,530.88 
Add: 

Bequests 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Contributions - net 0.00 0.00 89,535.00 0.00 300,oob.oo 0.00 
Income 83,919.60 5,830.60 0.00 13,707.27 213,332.29 31,047.16 

less income distributed (53,919.60) (5,830.60) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (31,047.16) 
Estates appropriated by 

Board of Trustees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Annuity amortization 0.00 0.00 (6,536.37) 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 
Distributions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (97,628.88) 0.00 
Market value gains 153,657.04 10,679.55 0.00 15,500.98 271,019.66 56,848.42 

153,657.04 10,676.55 82,998.63 29,208.25 685,125.07 56.848.42 
Balances - December 31 , 1999 1 ,352,508.49 93,970.83 236,687.94 214,499.89 3, 773,163.84 500,379.30 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $1 ,352,508.49 $93,970.83 $236,687.94 $214,499.89 $3,773,163.84 $500,379.30 



.... 
-'1 

"" 

BALANCE SHEET AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundatior< 
Year ended December 31, 1999 

A§§§!§ 

Investments: 
Investment management accounts 
Loans receivablf;l from congregations 
Notes receivable 
Land 

Due from ~o) other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Notes payable 

FUND BALANCES 

Balances - December 31, 1998 
Add: 

Bequests 
Contributions - net 
Income 

less income distributed 
Estates appropriated by 

Board ol Trustees 
Annuity amortization 
Distributions 
Market va·lue ga;is 

Balances - December 31 , 1999 

PRE-SCHOOL 
CHALLENGE ENDOWMENT 

FUNDf21) FUND(22) 

$0.00 $10,640.62 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 10,640.62 
0.00 0.00 

$0.00 $10,640.62 

$0.00 $0.00 

6,663.07 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 10.iloo.oo 
0.00 350.00 
0.00 (350.00) 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 Q.o;l 

(6,653.07) 0.00 
0.00 640.62 

(6,653.0Z) 10,640.62 
0.00 10,640.62 

TOTAL 

UNRESTRICTED 
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 

DONATED(30) DE SIGNA TED(35) TOTAL 

SCHEDULE B 
Page 3of3 

TOTAL­
ALL FUNDS 

$7,3E)1 .432.66_ $875,~.29 $481 ,572.03 $1,336,868.32 $8, 728,300.~ 
2,199,535.35 .0.00 0.00 0.00 2,199,535.35 

252,649.62 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 252,649.62 
193,039.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 193,039.92 

10,036,667.55 885,296.29 481,572.03 1,346,868.32 11,383,525.87 
(85,143.16) o.cl)_ _ _Q.(X) _______ .Q,QQ___(85,143.16) 

$9,951 ,514.39 $885,296.29 $481,572.03 $1,345,868.32 $11,298,382.71 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

8,640,937.09 785,866.28 262,316.38 1 ,048,171.66 9,689,1 08.75 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
400,279.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,279.48 
574,704.37 54,309.87 23,810.20 78,120.07 652,624.44 

(347,654.81) (54,309.87) (23,81 0.20) (78, 120.07) (425,784.Ss) 

0.00 0.00. 155,658.71 155,658.71 155,ssS.71 
(6,538.37) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,538.37) 

(111,808.01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (111,808.01) 
801,800.64 99,441.01 43,596.94 143,037.95 944.638.59 

1,310,577.30 99,441.01 ]99,266.65 ~.695.66 1 .1309.273.96 
9,951 ,514.39 885,296.29 481,572.03 1 ,346,668.32 11 ,298,382. 71 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES :ro.uo ~1U,f:S40.t;;< ~S,s::>1.o14."" ~"""·""' $481.572.03 $1 ,346,668.32 $11 ,298,382. 71 



SYNOD FUND SCHEDULE C 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod - Mankato, Minnesota 
Year ended December31, 1999 

Bethany College: 
Maintenance - college $21,000.00 
Maintenance - residences 2,024.25 
Interest 2;89"5.24 
Faculty housing allowance 84,000.00 $109,919.49 

Bethany Seminary - maintenance - residences 802.13 
Administration: 

Officers' expenses 45,705.05 
Salaries and stipends 97,811.41 
·Retirement, social· security·& insurance benefits 17,223.29 
Housing expenses 14,881.22 
Seminary office expenses 3,314.50 178,735.47 

Boards, committees, etc.: 
Archives committee 5,967.13 
Colloquy committee 1,060.08 
CELC 2,015.02 
ELS convention 1,180.38 
Doctrine committee 5,719.36 
Insurance 4,603.75 
ELSIWELS Forum 238.72 
MAP 3,044.75 
Nominations committee 892.00 
Planning and coordinating committee 2,178.64 
PrOfessional services 18,184.81 
Pastors' equalization fund 10,643.55 
Self-study committee 3,345.23 
Stewardship committee 15,358.00 
Board of Trustees 10,788.17 
Worship committee 1,435.15 
Video production 2,038.14 
Visitors' expenses 7,755,43 
other 5,764.41 102,192.72 

Business administrator 61,610.16 
Deferred giving counselor 72,702.01 
Missions counselor 64,330.43 
Interest: 

Working capital loan 6,000.00 
Life loan plan 395.40 
Investment program "30,280.20 
Church property mortgages 3,697.66 40,373.26 

TOTAL - Synod Fund expenses $630,665.67 
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CONGREGATION MEMBERS 
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Cooo Sur de Lima 
1 San Gabriel Norte A. Robles (p) 54 34 3 1 

2 San Gabriel Sur G. Ocrospoma (e) 27 18 9 

3 Villa Solidaridad A. Robles (p) 17 7 I 
4 Villa el Salvador* S. Melendez (e) 6 1 I 

Otros* 33 16 

Cono Norte de Lima 

5 \ AiioNuevo \ A. Rosario (p) I n I 54\ 6 I 12 I 
6\ Tahuantinsuyo l A. Rosario (p) I 24 L 18 4 I 

\ Otros• I I 111 s I 3 

Callao 

7 I Revnoso I R. BerrosEid !El I 87 I 46 I 21 1 

I Otros* 21 I 17 I 
Lima 

8 J Santa Beatriz* L Misioneros I 221 171 4 

9 I Santa Anita* I Misioneros I 91 5 I 2 

I Otros* I I 25 I 111 2 

Panamel'icana Norte 
10 Anc6n-Cristo Rey B. Capulian (v) 25 17 3 I 
II Puente Piedra A. Rosario (p) 43 24 4 

12 Zar>allal Jor£e Eslrada (e) 19 17 3 1 

13 Los Ccdros G. Asto (e) 12 7 4 

Provincias de Lima 
14 Huacho I 0. Fernandez (E) I ~~ I ~~ I ~ I I 15 Caiiete A. Robles (E) 

MINISTRATIONS SERVICES EDUCATION 
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3 2 2 580 35 35 35 18 1 3,000 

162 48 15 1 14 8 11 3 32 5,000 

120 48 10 5 6 

49 6 6 

32 6 8 

2 I 6 I I I 336 I I I 48 I 32 4 I t68 I I I 4t I 24 3 I 64 I 17 25,000 

I 2 I I 144\ I I 48 12 1 28 I I I 3 I 12 I\ 7 I 5 

I 2 I I I I I 24 I 8 1 32 I I 37 I 38 I I 48 I 3 

II II I 1438 I 1 I 1 I 51 I 48 2 51 I I I I 15 3 I 58 I I 15,000 

I I I I I I I I I I I 

L I 336 48 I 21 5 192 I 20 I I 3 60.000 

I I I l _I 45 I IOI l I L I J L J I I 
I I I I I 101 6 I I I I I I I 

138 49 19 35 12 2 30 3 1,600 

2 336 49 14 3 122 26 16 I 105 6 8,000 

3 I 120 12 19 30 22 I 32 3 2,000 

I 2 202 48 8 3 22 30 17 154 67 1 

I 51 91 2~~ I I I ~~I ::I II 10 I I I I I~ I I I I I 2 1 
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16 Chancay-Huaral 0. Fermlndez (p) 

Bolognesi de Ancash 

17 Chiouian F. Convercio (o) 

18 Ll:lmac F. Convercio (o) 

19 Pacll6n F. Convercio (o) 

20 Pocpa F. Convercio (p) 

Otros 

An cash 

21 Chimbote~Cristo S. Gutierrez (p) 
Vive* 

22 Huaraz* F. Convercio (p) 

23 Vista Alegre, F. Lozano (I) 

Caris* 
24 Marque. Coris* F. Lozano (I) 

Otros* 
Otros Departamentos del Peru 

25 Ca'amarca* S. Gutierrez lol 

29 Tarapoto T. Schultz (m) 

30 Pelejo T. Schultz (m) 

Total: 

Chile: 
I Las Cisterna O.Rodriquez 

2 Las Vertientes O.Rodrieuez 

3 San Bernardo R.Matens 
4 Linares O.Rodrigueq 

Total: 

Thou2:hts of Faith ---

Czech Republic: 

I I St. Paul's M. Grubbs 

M. Luttman 

Ukraine: 

I KyivCentral R.Kovaciny 
2 Kyiv Left Bank J. Rakos 

3 Kharkiv J.Shep 

4 ~QQ!}zhia J. Webber 
·-

161 

24 

49 

114 

23 

32 

47 

7 

23 

17 
1 

20 

1 

950 

49 

58 

35 

10 

152 

I 
I 

210 

33 

120 

60 

16 4 I 5 I 1 

23 5 1 4 

41 10 2 2 

74 20 4 I 

14 4 1 2 

8 I 

22 7 

3 I 

23 

6 

1 

16 2 

1 

585 123 29 7 31 29 

22 7 3 2 

17 2 2 

22 2 

4 2 

65 11 7 2 

I I I 
I l L L 

I I I 

2 8 

I 4 

1 1 .. 

412 I I I 12 2 131 I I I I 

149 52 14 1 58 15 29 1 4,000 

216 52 22 1 47 15 12 2,500 

398 52 30 1 97 20 54 4 12 4,000 

!56 31 20 1 64 66 1,000 

288 52 25 17 10 2 17 2 9,500 

17 84 4 19 

288 52 18 24 29 2 2,000 

52 14 7 11 

20 25 24 

8 16 24 7 3 

8 80 35 2 

5969 I 1 984 555 27 908 407 491 31 484 51 142,600 

380 51 29 1 17 3 1 12 30 1,235 

216 51 21 2 1 13 24 480 

50 1 50 8 2 27 5 1 2 23 693 

20 I 10 28 

666 1 I 162 86 3 44 10 3 27 77 

I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I I 

I I I I I I I 

12 2 I 51 130 5 110 38 4 38 

34 27 22 

38 I 3 51 80 5 40 23 3 23 

22 2 1 49 45 ' 30 2 - .... 20 --
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5 Sevastopol 455 

6 Simferopol 42 

7 Miko1eev 63 

8 lvanivka 36 

9 Kherson 20 

10 Kremenetz !57 

11 lasarivka 15 

12 Vorob"vika 16 

13 Lviv 15 

Totlll; ---- 12421-

Four Comers Mission Society: 
I Plzen 

2 Prague 

3 Prague (Enelish) 

4 Prague 

(e) estudiante-student 
(p) pastor 
(v) vicario-vicar 
(I) laico-layman 

J.Krikava 42 43 

J.Krikava 400 380 

J.Krikava 54 44 

J.Krikava 

* informaci6n del aiio anterior ~ infonnation from previous year 

6 I 18 51 

15 

3 4 2 15 

3 I 

10 

16 L.!.Q_ _2_8 J..-11i_ ~ 

9 3 2 2 2 520 I 

14 6 4 I 360 I 

7 3 1040 4 

I 50 !50 4 83 201 3 101 

12 31 5 
4 52 45 5 35 

I 34 30 27 I 10 

4 15 

so 95 3 50 125 4 60 

25 12 4 15 
4 15 I 15 18 I 

50 12 4 15 

11 4€& 688 ~L-1§3 543 22 307 

52 30 2 100 68 4 60 60 2 5 

10 52 35 6 30 8 10 20 

I 52 35 6 25 3 10 

12 8 



DIRECTORIES 

CHURCH BODIES IN FELLOWSHIP WITH 
THE EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

CONFESSIONAL EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CONFERENCE 

OFFICERS 
President: Prof. Armin J. Panning 

l1812N Seminary Drive 65W 
Mequon, WI 53902-1543 
(262) 242-8163, Fax: (262) 242-8110 
panninga@wis. wels .net 

Vice President: Prof. Adolph L. Harstad 
Secretary: Prof. John Moldstad Jr. 
Treasurer: Mr. Eugene G. Schulz 
Planning Committee Members at Large: 

The Rev. Daniel Koelpin, 
The Rev. Walter Westphal 

MEMBER CHURCHES 
Bulgarian Lutheran Church 

Christ the King Lutheran Church (Nigeria) 
Confessional Evangelical Lutheran Church (Mexico) 

Confessional Evangelical Lutheran Church (Puerto Rico) 
Confessional Evangelical Lutheran Church (Russia) 

Evangelical Lutheran Confessional Church (Finland) 
Evangelical Lutheran Free Church (Germany) 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod (USA) 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod of Australia 

Evangelical Lutheran Synod in Peru 
Lutheran Church of Cameroon 

Lutheran Church of Central Africa-Malawi 
Lutheran Church of Central Africa-Zambia 

Lutheran Confessional Church (Sweden and Norway) 
Lutheran Evangelical Christian Church-Japan 

Wisconsin Evangelical Lutheran Synod 
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WISCONSIN EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN SYNOD 

2929 N. Mayfair Road, Milwaukee, WI 53222 
(414) 256-3888 

OFFICERS OF THE SYNOD 
President: The Rev. Karl R. Gurgel 

2929 N. Mayfair Rd., Milwaukee, WI 53222 ....................... (414) 256-3201 
First Vice President: The Rev. Richard E. Lauersdorf 

2929 N. Mayfair Rd., Milwaukee, WI 53222 ...................... (414)256-3204 
Second Vice President: The Rev. Jon M. Mahnke 

5828 Santa Theresa Blvd., San Jose, CA 95123 ..................... (408) 225-0107 
Secretary/Statistician: The Rev. Douglas L. Bode 

1005 E. Broadway, Prairie du Chien, WI 53821 .................... (608) 326-4899 

CONFERENCE OF PRESIDENTS 
The Rev. Karl R. Gurgel, Chairman 

2929 N. Mayfair Rd., Milwaukee, WI 53222 ....................... (414) 256-3201 
The Rev. Richard E. Lauersdorf, First Vice President 

2929 N. Mayfair Rd., Milwaukee, WI 53222 ...................... (414) 256-3204 
The Rev. Jon M. Mahnke, Second Vice President 

5828 Santa Theresa Blvd., San Jose, CA 95123 ..................... (408)225-0107 
The Rev. Paul M. Janke 

3461 Merle Ave., Modesto, CA 95355 ............... Arizona-California District 
The Rev. Peter J. Naumann 

620 W. 9th St., Mobridge, SD 57601 ................... Dakota-Montana District 
The Rev. John C. Seifert 

907 Mattes Dr, Midland, MI 48642 .............................. Michigan District 
The Rev. Larry E. Cross 

4520 19th Ave NW, Rochester, MN 55901 ..................... Minnesota District 
The Rev. Joel G. Frank 

110 Hwy. 4, Box 222, Plymouth, NE 68424 ..................... Nebraska District 
The Rev. Walter F. Beckmann 

7401 Masonville Dr., Annandale, VA 22003 ........... North Atlantic District 
The Rev. Douglas J. Engelbrecht 

249 E. Franklin Ave., Neenah, WI54956 ....... Northern Wisconsin District 
The Rev. Warren L. Widmann 

7610 NE Fremont, Portland, OR 97213 ............... Pacific Northwest District 
The Rev. John R. Guse 

3630 Heatherwood Trace, Marietta, GA 30066 ........... South Atlantic District 
'T'ho "Ron 1-T~l~.:. '0 fll,..,,.,.,.lr.-. 
.&..&.&."-' ..._.,.._. 'f, 1' ..1..1."0 ..&.1/o "-AJ.U\J.:JrL\..i 

4431 Hwy. FM 115, Scroggins, TX 85480 .................. South Central District 
The Rev. David N. Rutschow 

527-63rd St., Downers Grove, IL 60516 ...... Southeastern Wisconsin District 
The Rev. Herbert H. Prahl 

S8441 Michael Dr., Eau Claire, WI 54701 ....... Western Wisconsin District 
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ORGANIZATIONS AFFILIATED WITH THE 
EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD 

CROSS STITCH 
Contact: The Rev. Steven Petersen 

ELS HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
Contact: The Rev. Erling Teigen 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD FOUNDATION 
Contact: The Rev. Richard Wiechmann 

FAITH MISSION SOCIETY 
Contact: Mr. Marlin Goebel (517) 742-4505 

24885 Morrow Rd, Hillman, MI, 
Video Library: Kathy Huxford (810) 798-8684 

16387 Marr Road; Allenton, MI 48002 

FOUR CORNERS MISSION SOCIETY 
Contact: The Rev. James Krikiva 

HELPING HANDS 
Contact: Mr. Robert Soule (763) 662-2147 

16600 313 Ave., Princeton, MN 55371 

MARVIN M. SCHWAN RETREAT & CONFERENCE CENTER 
N10884 Hoinville Road, Trego, Wisconsin 54888 
Contact: Mr. Theodore E. Manthe (715) 446-6300 or (800) 577-4848 

fax: (715) 466-6306 www.schwancenter.org 

MISSIONS ADVANCEMENT PROJECT (MAP) 
Contact: Mr. Greg Griffin (608) 249-6760, 

1415 Burning Wood Way, Madison, WI 53704 

AREA LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOLS 
affiliated with the ELS 

CALIFORNIA LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
31970 Central Ave Box 1570, Wildomar, CA 92525 (909)678-7000 

EVERGREEN LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
2021 S 2601h St, Des Moines, WA 98198 (253) 946-4488 

KETTLE MORAINE LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
3399 Division Rd, Jackson, WI 53037 (262) 766-4051 

MINNESOTA VALLEY LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
Rt 5, Box 52A, New Ulm, Minnesota 56073 (507) 354-6851 

SAINT CROIX LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
1200 Oakdale Ave, West St. Paul, MN 52118 (651) 455-1521 

WEST LUTHERAN HIGH SCHOOL 
3350 Harbor Lane, Plymouth, MN 55447 (763) 509-9378 
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FOREIGN MISSIONS 

MISSION OF THE 
EVANGELICAL LliTHERAN SYNOD IN PERU 

(Peru, South America) 
Seminary Building: 

Enrique Barron 964 
Santa Beatriz 
Lima 1, Peru, SA 
Tel: 011-51-14-133-126 
Fax: 011-51-14-133-126 
e-mail: postmas@mselp.org.pe 

Mailing Address: 
Skyexpress Enterprises 
Name of Missionary 
6410 N.W. 82 Ave. Box 136 
Miami FL 33166 

Missionaries: 
The Rev. Timothy Erickson 
The Rev. David Haeuser 
The Rev. Terry Schultz 

National Pastors: 
The Rev. Roberto Berrospid 
The Rev. Fidel Covercio 
The Rev. Oswaldo Fernandez 
The Rev. Segundo Gutierrez 
The Rev. Andres Robles 
The Rev. Abraham Rosario 

IGLESIA CHRISTIANA 
DE LA REFORMA LUTHERANA 

(Chile, South America) 
Mailing Address: 

Name of Missionary 
Exp#1141 
P.O. Box 025285 
Miami, FL 33102-5285 

Missionaries: 
The Rev. Karl Kuenzel 
The Rev. Ralph Martens 
The Rev. Othoniel Rodriguez 

THOUGHTS OF FAITH 
(a church related organization of the ELS) 

Mailing Address: UKRAINE: 
P.O. Box 14502 Mailing Addresses: 
Madison, WI 53714-0502 Kyiv: 
Tel: 608-243-3227 do John Shep 
Fax: 608-243-3284 Pushkinska 21/31 

Administrator: 
The Rev. David Meyer 

CZECH REPUBLIC: 
Mailing Address: 

St. Paul's Lutheran Church and 
The School of Martin Luther 
Skolni namesti 1 
31805 Plzen 
Czech Republic 
Tel/Fax: 011-420-19-28-0754 

Pastors: 
The Rev. Mark Grubbs 
The Rev. Matthew Luttman 
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Kiev252004 
Ukraine 
Tel: 011-380-44-235-7721 
Fax: 011-380-44-234-0800 

Ternopil: 
Russka 4/27 
Ternopil 282001 
Ukraine 
Tel/Fax: 011-380-35-222-2534 

Pastors: 
The Rev. Roger Kovaciny 
The Rev. Joel Rakos 
The Rev. John Shep 
The Rev. David Jay Webber 



EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD: 
www .EvLuthSyn.org 

OFFICERS 

President ....................................................... The Rev. George Orvick 
Home 1117 Lori Lane, Mankato, MN 56001 
Office 6 Browns Court, Mankato, MN 56001 

Phones: Office 507-344-7356; Home 507-38 7-1498 
Fax 507-344-7426, E-mail gorvick@blc.edu 

Vice President ........................................... The Rev. John Moldstad, Jr. 
6 Browns Court, Mankato, MN 56001 

Phones: Office 507 -344-7358; Home 507-386-7267 
Fax 507-344-7426, E-mail jamjr@blc.edu 

Secretary ................................................... The Rev. Craig Ferkenstad 
RR 3, Box 40, St. Peter, MN 56082 

Phones: Office 507-246-5312; Home 507-246-5140 
E-mail elsec@prairie.lakes.com 

Treasurer ............................................................... Mr. Leroy Meyer 
1038 South Lewis Avenue, Lombard, IL 60148 

Phones: Office 630-971-0150; Home 630-620-4348 
E-mail lmeyer@flexco.com or Dobybeem@aol.com 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

(4 years, elected 1998) 
President George Orvick ..................................................... President 

(4 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Craig Ferkenstad ................................................... Secretary 
Mr. Leroy Meyer .............. · ................................................. Treasurer 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Martin Doepel.. ........................... 212 Volk St., Portage, WI 53901 

Phone: 608-742-4286 

Mr. Albin Levorson ......................... 668 450th St., Northwood, lA 50459-8776 
Phone: 641-324-1189 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Allen Borlaug ....................... 1035 Windsor Ave., Waucoma, lA 52171 

Phone: 319-569-8687 

Mr. Wilbur Lieske .............................. 9 Skyline Dr., Mankato, MN 56001 
Phone: 507-345-4784 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
Mr. Robert Brown ................. W305 N5660 Stevens Rd., Hartland, WI 53029 

Phone: 414-367-2212 
Mr. Greg Griffin .................. 1405 Burning Wood Way, Madison, WI 53704 

Phone: 608-249-6760 

Advisory Members .................. The Rev. John Moldstad, Jr., Vice President 
The Rev. Alf Merseth 
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WISCONSIN CORPORATION BOARD OF TRUSTEES: 
President George Orvick 
The Rev. Craig Ferkenstad 
Mr. Leroy Meyer 
Mr. Wilbur Lieske 
Mr. Allen Borlaug 

Mr. Greg Griffin 
Mr. Robert Brown 

Mr. Albin Levorson 
The Rev. Martin Doepel 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD FOUNDATION: 

OFFICERS 
President ...................................................... President George Orvick 
Secretary ................................................... The Rev. Craig Ferkenstad 
Treasurer ............................................................... Mr. Leroy Meyer 

FOUNDATION COMMITTEE 
(elected by the Board of Trustees) 

Mr. Robert Brown ................. W305 N5660 Stevens Rd., Hartland, WI 53029 
Mr. Wilbur Lieske .............................. 9 Skyline Dr., Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. Leroy W. Meyer ................ 1038 South Lewis Avenue, Lombard, IL 60148 
The Rev. Richard Wiechmann ....... 225 Moreland Ave., Mankato, MN 56001 

BETHANY LUTHERAN COLLEGE, INCORPORATED: 

GENERAL OFFICERS 
President ....................................................... The Rev. George Orvick 
Vice President ........................................... The Rev. John Moldstad, Jr. 
Secretary ................................................... The Rev. Craig Ferkenstad 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

Type A members 
(3 years, elected 2000) 

Mr. Paul Chamberlin ..................... 68 Fairview, South Chatham, MA 02659 
The Rev. John Moldstad, Sr ......... 36141 Barbour Lane, Pine River, MN 56474 
The Rev. J. Kincaid Smith .................. 3146 Delevan Dr.,Saginaw, MI 48609 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. William Overn ....................... 1459 Lone Oak Road, Eagan, MN 55121 
The Rev. Kenneth Schmidt 1288 Pleasant Valley Road, West Bend, WI 53095 

(2 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Mark Bartels .................. 3825 Highridge Rd., Madison, WI 53718 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
Mr. Jon Bruss .............. N61 W29865 Stoney Hill Circle, Hartland, WI 53029 
Mr. Harold Theiste ....................... 15035 18th Ave. N., Plymouth, MN 55447 
Mr. Roland Reinholtz ......... 3917 Weatherwood Trail, Verona, WI 53593-8425 

Type B members 
(3 year, ratified 2000) 

Rev. Klebe Brumble ....................... 7670 E. Jomax Rd., Scottsdale, AZ 85255 

(3 years, ratified 1999) 
Mr. Lyle Fahning ..................... 14000 Frontier Lane, Burnsville, MN 55337 

(2 years, ratified 1999) 
Mr. Willis Anthony ................................ RR 1 Box 66, St. Peter, MN 56082 
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Advisory Members: ........................................... The Rev. George Orvick 
The Rev. M.E. Tweit 

The Rev. Raymond Branstad 
The Rev. Lawrence Burgdorf, 514 Earth City Expy #233, Earth City, MO 63045 

THE SYNOD'S BOARDS AND COMMITI'EES: 
THE SYNOD'S VISITORS 

( 3 years, elected 1998) 
Circuit 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Alt. The Rev. David Lillegard 
Circuit 2 ........................................................... The Rev. Thomas Fox 

Alt. The Rev. Michael Langlais 
Circuit 3 ....................................................... The Rev. Paul Schneider 

Alt. The Rev. J. Kincaid Smith 
Circuit 4 ..................................................... The Rev. Kenneth Schmidt 

Alt. The Rev. Mark Bartels 
Circuit 5 ................................................... The Rev. Frederick Theiste 

Alt. The Rev. Harold Vetter 
Circuit 6 ................................................... The Rev. Wayne Halvorson 

Alt. The Rev. Tom Rank 
Circuit 8 ......................................................... The Rev. Erwin Ekhoff 
Circuit 10 ....................................................... The Rev. Klebe Brumble 

Alt. The Rev. Herbert Huhnerkoch 
Circuit 11 .................................................. The Rev. Glenn Obenberger 

Alt. The Rev. James Braun 

(2 years, elected 1999) 
Circuit 1 ........................................................... The Rev. Rodger Dale 

(1 year, elected 2000) 
Circuit 7 ...................................................... The Rev. Ernest Geistfeld 

Alt. The Rev. Rolf Preus 
Circuit 8 ....................................................... Alt. The Rev. John Smith 
Circuit 9 ...................................................... The Rev. Henry Gieschen 

Alt. The Rev. Erik Gernander 

DOCTRINE COMMITTEE 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Wilhelm Petersen ... 1521 Graystone Lane, No. Mankato, MN 56003 
Mr. Allen Quist ..................................... Rt. 3, Box 33, St. Peter, MN 56082 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
The Rev. Juul Madson ..................... 169 Heather Lane, Mankato, MN 56001 
The Rev. Paul Zager ............................ 527 N Main St., Lombard, IL 60148 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. John Moldstad, Jr ...................... 114 Echo St., Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. David Roembke ............................ 921 Cline, Port Orchard, WA 98366 

(By virtue of office) 
President of Bethany Lutheran Theological Seminary 
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COLLOQUYCON.rnflTTEE 

The president of the synod 
The vice-president of the synod 
The chairman of the Doctrine Committee 
One layman from the Doctrine Committee 

(appointed by the president of the synod) 
The president of Bethany Lutheran Theological Seminary 

BOARD FOR HOME MISSIONS 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Robert Smith .................... 13151 Gamma Way, Apple Valley, MN 55124 
The Rev. Richard Wiechmann ....... 225 Moreland Ave., Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
The Rev. Daniel Basel .................. 1138 Anderson Dr., Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. John Merseth, Sr .......................... 1042 Marsh St., Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Erwin Ekhoff ................. 6000 Duluth St., Golden Valley, MN 55422 
The Rev. Rodney Flohr ...................... 6324 Portage Ave., Portage, IN 46368 
Mr. Leslie Just ............................. 213 W. Frazee, Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 

BOARD FOR FOREIGN MISSIONS 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Kurt Smith ........................... 20425 Taylor St., Weston, OH 43569 
Mr. Harmon Anderson ............... 8556 E. Appaloosa T., Scottsdale, AZ 85258 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
The Rev. Wayne Halvorson ............ 2133 Kenneth Dr., Albert Lea, MN 56007 
Mr. Robert Soule ............................... 16600 313 Ave., Princeton, MN 55371 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Paul Anderson .............. 3459 Hillview Road, Eau Claire, WI 54703 
Mr. Marlin Goebel .......................... 24885 Morrow Rd., Hillman, MI 49746 
The Rev. David Lillegard ................. 625 Atlantus Ter., Sebastian, FL 32958 

BOARD FOR EVANGELISM 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Lloyd Ahlbrand ............................... 235 S. Penn St., Hobart, IN 46342 
The Rev. Nathan Krause ............. 1966 Circle High, Cottage Grove, WI 53527 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Odell Iverson .............. 17103 Spanaway Loop Rd., Spanaway, WA 98387 
The Rev. Michael Smith ................ 601 Woodland Drive, Holland, MI 49424 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Kenneth Mellon ....... 826 Jefferson Drive, Bowling Green, OH 43402 

Advisory member: ..................................... The Rev. Matthew Thompson 
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BOARD FOR EDUCATION AND YOUTH 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Glen Hansen ............................. 1976 115th Ave, Princeton, MN 55371 
Mr. Curtis Mantey ........ 2985 Royalwood Place S.E., Port Orchard, WA 98367 
The Rev. Alexander Ring ... 11009 Park AveS D306, Tacoma, WA 98444-5770 
The Rev. Mark Wold ............... 125 Audubon Road, Winter Haven, FL 33884 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Troy Grooms ........................ 14210 44th Place N., Plymouth, MN 55446 
The Rev. Charles Keeler ............... 151 Tremont W, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
The Rev. Donald Moldstad ................... 1123 Marsh St., Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. Mark Wiechmann .................... 1615 Broad St. N., Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Jerome Gernander ............. 304 Elm St. Box 86, Thornton, IA 50479 
The Rev. Jonathan Madson .......... 2915 Oaktree Drive, Kissimmee, FL 34744 
Mr. Robert Pipal ............................. 54 Skyline Drive, Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. James Schneck ....... 3820 Cherry Tree Blvd., Lake Havasu City, AZ 86403 
The Rev. Matthew Thompson ......... .400 County Rd 49, Cold Spring, MN 56320 

BOARDFORPUBUCATIONS 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Bradley Homan ................... 1201 Droster Rd, Madison, WI 53716 
Mr. Howard Siewert ............... 13795 Diamond Path, Apple Valley, MN 55124 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Robert Deering ........................ 1122 Nichols Road, Madison, WI 53716 
Mr. Paul Wold ................................ 938 Marsh Street, Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Walther Gullixson ... 210 N. Black Eagle Drive, Mankato, MN 56001 
The Rev. Roger Holtz ..................... 85 Lincoln Ave., Clintonville, WI 54929 

BOARD FOR CHRISTIAN SERVICE 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Herb Berg ................................ 13 Cypress Run, Haines City, FL 33844 

( 3 years, elected 1998) 
The Rev. David Hoyord .13401 Johnny Cake Ridge Rd, Apple Valley MN 55124 
Mr. Stanley Reinholtz ..................... 5026 Bayfield Ter., Madison, WI 53705 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
Mr. Don Heiliger ............................ 2433 Leslie Road, Stoughton, WI 53589 
The Rev. Mark Iviarozick .............. 2642 Church St., Cottage Grove, WI 53527 

COMMITTEE ON WORSIDP 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Mark DeGarmeaux ............ 115 Blue Earth St., Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
The Rev. Dennis Marzolf ........................ 114 Hannah, Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Harry Bartels ......... 5835 Apple Blossom Dr., Brownsburg, IN 46112 
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BOARD FOR STEWARDSHIP 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
The Rev. Fred Theiste .................. 3715 London Road, Eau Claire, WI 54701 
Mr. Allen Wollenzien ............................ 813 Hyland, Stoughton, WI 53589 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Timothy Peterson ...... 3235 N. Wellington Lane, Minneapolis, MN 55441 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
Mr. Howard Hougan ..................... 1915 Paulis Drive, Faribault, MN 55021 
The Rev. Paul Schneider .................. 4525 West Main St, Midland, MI 48640 

Ex Officio ....................................................... Treasurer Leroy Meyer 

EQUALIZATION COMMITTEE 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Bryan Hayes .................................. 236 Craig Ave., Tracy, MN 56175 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Ralph Miller ........................... 145 Atwood Drive, Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. Roger Holtz ..................... 85 Lincoln Ave., Clintonville, WI 54929 

PLANNING AND COORDINATING COMMITTEE 

The officers of the synod 
The chairman (or his representative) of the following boards: 

Board for Christian Service Board for Publications 
Board for Education and Youth Board of Regents 
Board for Evangelism Board for Stewardship 
Board for Home Missions Doctrine Committee 
Board for Foreign Missions Three (3) laymen: 

(3 years, elected 2000) 
Mr. Dennis Behr ........................... 3025 Waubesa Ave., Madison, WI 53711 

(3 years, elected 1998) 
Mr. Norman Werner ................... 9781 Bluebird St., Coon Rapids, MN 55433 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
Mr. Albert Holman ...................... 3871A S.llth St., Grand Forks, ND 58201 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE FOR THE 2001 CONVENTION 

The Rev. Erwin Ekhoff ............. 6000 Duluth Street, Golden Valley, MN 55422 
The Rev. Rolf Preus ................ 817 18'h St. NW, East Grand Forks, MN 56721 
The Rev. Alexander Ring ........ 110098 Park AveS. D306, Tacoma, WA 98444 
The Rev. J. Kincaid Smith ................. 3146 Delevan Dr., Saginaw, MI 48603 
Mr. Silas Born ............................... 700 Luther Drive, Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. Paul Chamberlin .................... ffi Fairview, South Chatham, MA 002659 
Mr. Glen Hansen ............................. 1976 115'1' Ave., Princeton, MN 55371 
Mr. Allen Quist ..................................... RR 3, Box 33, St. Peter, MN 56082 
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THESELFSTUDYCO~TTEE 

Elected Positions-­
(3 years, elected 1998) 

Mr. Robert Brown .................. W305 N5660 Stevens Rd., Hartland, Wl 53029 

(3 years, elected 1999) 
The Rev. J. B. Madson .................... 100 Heather Lane, Mankato, MN 56001 

Presidentially Appointed Positions-­
(3 years, appointed 2000) 

The Rev. Milton Tweit ..................... 115 Echo St. #506, Mankato, MN 56001 

(3 years, appointed 1998) 
Mr. Norman Werner ................... 9781 Bluebird St., Coon Rapids, MN 55433 

(3 years, appointed 1999) 
The Rev. Alf Merseth ................... 100 13th Street South, Northwood, IA 50459 

CO~TTEE ON ARCHIVES AND IDSTORY 
507-344-7854 

(elected by the Board of Trustees) 
The Rev. W.C. Gullixson ......... 210 N. Black Eagle Dr., Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. Norman Holte ................................ 422 Belmont, Mankato, MN 56001 
Dr. Gerhard Lee .......................... 2215 Waunona Way, Madison, WI 53713 
Prof. Sigurd Lee ......................... 225 Hinckley Street, Mankato, MN 56001 
The Rev. J.B. Madson ..................... 100 Heather Lane, Mankato, MN 56001 
Mr. Norman Werner ................... 9781 Bluebird St., Coon Rapids, MN 55433 

FULL-TIME WORKERS 
Rev. Steven Petersen ............................................. Missions Counselor 
Rev. Richard Wiechmann ............................. Deferred Giving Counselor 
Mr. Keith Wiederhoeft ...................................... Business Administrator 

Office: 507-344-7395; Home: 507-345-1388 
Fax 507-344-7426, E-mail keithw@blc.edu 

TELEPHONE NUMBER FOR: 
The WELS Committee for Counseling Called Workers (C.C.C.W.) 

1-800-422-7341 
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CHRISTIAN DAY SCHOOLS 
and PRESCHOOLS 

June 16, 2000 
• indicates school admi:nistratorlprlncipal/director 

SecretaryofSchools (Board for Education and Youth) ............ Curtis Mantey* 
2985 Royalwood Place S.E., Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Tel. 360-876-0813, E-mail: cmantey@hotmail.com 

DirectorofChristianEducation (Bethany Lutheran College) ........ Silas Born* 
Bethany Lutheran College, 700 Luther Drive, Mankato, MN 56001 
Home: 507-388-6963, Office: 507-344-7431, E-mail: sborn@blc.edu 

Bethany Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
151 Tremont West 
Port Orchard, WA 98366-3737 
Tel. 360-876-1300 
Fax 360-876-5098 

Ramona Fisher 
Barb Mantey 
Curtis Mantey* 
Carol Olsen 
Ryan Rathje 
Lucy Rinehart 

Christ Ev. Lutheran Preschool 
(Preschool Only) 
1592 S.E. Floresta Dr. 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34983 
Tel 561-879-1353 

Marcella Lowry * 

Concordia Preschool 
(Preschool Only) 
3715 London Road 
Eau Claire, WI 54701 
Tel 715-834-0921 
Fax 715-834-0921 

Lynda Krueger* 

Heritage Lutheran Preschool 
(Preschool Only) 
13401 Johnny Cake Ridge Road 
Apple Valley, MN 55124 
Tel. 612-431-6225 

Cheryl Streckert* 
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Holton Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
6655 Marvin Road 
Holton, MI 49425 
Tel. 231-821-0032 

Becky Martin 
Kathy Pingel 
Kim Riley 

Holy Cross Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
2670 Milwaukee Street 
Madison, WI 53704 
Tel. 608-249-3101 
Fax 608-249-0601 

Patricia Becker 
Pamela Berndt 
Camilla Dashcund 
lone Ibeling 
Elizabeth Krause 
Daniel Madson 
Barbara Pape 
Timothy Ristow* 
Shelly Schoenherr 
Sharon Treder 

Holy Trinity Ev. Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
POBox44 
35181 Wisconsin Avenue 
Okauchee, WI 53069 
Tel. 414-567-0669 
Fax 414-567-0669 

Susan Callaway 
Patricia Hoeft 
Linda Mickelson 
Fred Pahmeier* 
Dawn Sauer 



Hope Lutheran Preschool 
(Preschool Only) 
2930 w. 9000 s. 
West Jordan, UT 84088 
Tel801-569-1111 

King of Grace Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
6000 Duluth Street 
Golden Valley, MN 55422 
Tel. 612-546-3131 
Fax 612-540-0028 

Steve Baiza 
Polly Browne 
Elisabeth Cox 
Shiela Degner 
Karl Hassler* 
Judy Luxford 
Jonathan Matzke 
Cinda Meitner 
Karen Merseth 
Aaron Olmanson 
Carol Robison 
vacancy 

Lakewood Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
10202 112th Street SW 
Tacoma, WA 98498 
Tel. 253-584-6024 
Fax 253-584-4615 

Laura Lai 
Shu-Ting Lai* 
Sue Schmidt 
vacancy 

Mt. Olive Lutheran School 
(Kindergarten through Eighth 
Grade) 
1123 Marsh Street 
Mankato, MN 56001 
Tel. 507-345-7927 

Marie Aaberg 
Steven Beilke* 
Carolyn Bernard 
Sherrie Bukowski 
Timothy Pietsch 
Kari Sehloff 
Mary Younge 
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Our Redeemer Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
805 East Yelm Ave. 
Yelm, WA 98297-9424 
Tel. 360-458-7310 

Nancy Loomis 
Dennis Morrison* 
Dolores Morrison 

Our Savior Lutheran Preschool 
(Preschool only) 
10,000 Airport Road North 
Naples, Fl34109 
Tel. 941-597-6009 
Fax 941-597-8846 

Karilyn Nickel 
vacancy 

Our Savior's Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
3163 Maricopa Drive 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86406 
Tel. 520-855-8811 

Gloria Dennis 
James Schneck* 
Karen Schneck 

Parkland Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
12309 Pacific Avenue 
POBox44006 
Tacoma, WA 98444 
Tel. 253-537-1901 
Fax 253-537-0172 

Laurie Barnes 
Connie Davis 
Sue Jankens 
Sharon King 
Jolene McClung 
Linda Perry 
Nathan Radichel 
Alex Ring 
Chris Rogich 
Larry Rude* 
Mary Schwisow 

Precious Lambs Preschool 
(Preschool only) 
143 Washington Street 
Oregon, WI 53575 
Tel. 608-835-3554 

Kathleen Bartz* 
Jackie Grundmanis 



Princeton Ev. Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
7401 Alpha Road 
Princeton, MN 55371 
Tel. 763-389-0704 
Fax 763-389-0704 

Linda Larson 
Brenda Smith 
Kathleen Stein* 

Scarville Lutheran School 
(Kindergarten through Eighth 
Grade) 
Box20 
Scarville, IA 504 73 
Tel. 515-568-3372 

vacancy 

St. Timothy Ev. Lutheran 
(Preschool and Kindergarten) 
547 N. Main Street 
Lombard, IL 60148-1632 
Tel. 630-627-6790 

vacancy 
Paul Zager* 

Trinity Lutheran School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
1268 Pleasant Valley Road 
West Bend, WI 53095 
Tel. 414-675-6627 

Diana Borman 
Richard Brei* 
Richard Holz 
Judy Larabell 
Elizabeth Ruege 
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Western. Koshkonong Luth. School 
(Preschool through Eighth Grade) 
2632 Church Street 
Cottage Grove, WI 53527 
Tel. 608-873-6011 

Evelyn Daley* 
Linda Marozick 
Deborah Saeger 

The School of Martin Luther 
(Kindergarten through Ninth 
Grade) 
Skolni namesti 1 
31805 Plzen, Czech Republic 
Tel. 011-420-19-28-1097 

Kimberly Festerling 
Mary Grubbs 
Robert Hill* 
Marlene Hill 
Jennifer Keirn 
Paul Keirn 
Nancy Luttman 
Rachel Moldstadt 
Harold Schewe 
Jeanne Schewe 



CHURCH LOCATIONS 

CffiCUIT 1 

FLORIDA 

~ss~ee-Peace 
10:00 
J.N. Madson 
3249 Windmill Point Blvd. 
Mail: PO Box 451697; 34745 

Lakeland-Our Savior 
9:30 
N.Pommeranz 
69'Xl Socrum Loop Rd. N; 33809 

Lakeland-Peace 
10:30 
J. Willitz 
5970 Lakeland Highlands Rd.; 33813 

Naples-Our Savior 
9:00 
R. Dale 
10,000 Airport Rd. N.; 34109 

Naples-Our Redeemer* 
S.Brockdorf 
Mail: 1382 Wildwood Lakes Blvd; 

34104 

Port St. Lucie -Christ 
10:00 
P. Lepak 
1592 S.E. Floresta Dr.; 34983 

Sebastian-Trinity 
10:00 
D. Lillegard 
611 Schumann Dr.; 32958 

Sebring-New Life 
8:30 & 10:45 (S 8:30) 
R. Fyffe 
3725 Hammock Rd; 33872 

Vero Beach-Grace 
10:00 
J. Petersen 
1150 41st Ave.; 32960 

Winter Haven-Resurrection 
10:30 
M. Wold 
4620 Cypress Gardens Rd.; 33884 

GEORGIA 

Kennesaw-Resurrection 
11:30 am or 6:30pm (monthly)* 
Vacant 
2875 Stilesboro Road; 30152 

cmcUIT 2 
M.A..SSACHUSETI'S 

Brewster-Trinity 
9:30 
M. Langlais 
1883 Main St.; 02631 
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Burlington-Pinewood 
10:45 (S 10:00) 
T. Fox 
24 Wilmington Rd.; 01803 



CIRCUIT 3 

Brownsburg-Good Shepherd 
10:15 
G.Lilienthal 
204 E. Main St.; 46112 

Alpena-Faith 
9:00 
A. Dethlefsen 
233 Cavanaugh; 49707 

Detroit-St. Matthew 
10:30 CS 9:30) 
L. Vinton 
4430 St. James Street;48210 

East Jordan-Faith 
10:00 
J.Londgen 
02148 S. Wilson Rd.; 49727 

Hillman-Faith 
11:00 
A. Dethlefsen 
24640 Veterans Memorial Hwy 
Mail: Box 358; 497 46 

Holland-Lord of Life 
9:00 
M. Smith 
290 E. 18th St 
Mail: 601 Woodland Dr; 49424 

Bowling Green-Abiding Word 
10:00 
K. Mellon 
17202 N. Mercer Rd. 
Mail: 826 Jefferson Dr.; 43402 

Deshler-Peace 
9:30 
M.Ernst 
5039 County Road G; 43516 

INDIANA 
Portage-Hope 

10:30 
R.Flohr 
6322 Portage Ave. 46368 

MICHIGAN 

Holton-Holton 
10:00 (S 9:00) 
M. Krentz 
6655 Marvin Rd.; 49425 

Midland-Holy Scripture 
9:00 
P. Schneider 
4525 West Main St.; 48640 

Rogers City-Trinity 
10:00 
T. Smuda 
6134 US 23 North 
Mail: 737 Patricia St.; 49779 

Saginaw-Gloria Dei 
8:00 & 10:45 CS 9:00) 
H.Mosley Jr. 
5250 Mackinaw 

Suttons Bay-First 
10:00 
R.Pederson 

OHIO 

321 St. Mary's Ave. 
Mail: PO Box 189; 49682 

Weston-Grace 
10:00 
K. Smith 
20425 Taylor St. 
Mail: PO Box 304; 43569 

PENNSYLVANIA 
North Huntingdon-Zion 

10:30 
B. Leonatti 
351 Robbins-Station Rd.; 15642 
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CIRCUIT 4 

ILLINOIS 

Chicago-Emmaus 
10:45 
S. Schmidt 
5440 W. Gladys Ave; 60644 

Chicago-St. Marks 
9:30 
S.Schmidt 
3101 Parkside Ave. 
Mail: 1928 S. 7u.. Ave; Maywood; 

60153 

Litchfield-Faith 
9:00 
W. Frick 
718N. State 
Mail: 717 N. Monroe; 62056 

Lombard-St. Timothy 
10:15 (S 9:00) 
P. Zager 
547 N. Main St.; 60148 

INDIANA 

Hobart-Grace 
8:00 
F. Lams 
6240 Grand Blvd 
Mail: 1031 Hickey St., Hobart; 

46342 

WISCONSIN 

Cottage Grove -Abiding Shepherd 
9:00 
N.Krause 
535 Southing Grange-#300; 53527 

Cottage Grove-Western Koshkonong 
10:00 (S 9:30) 
M. Marozick 
2642 Church St; 53527 

Madison-Grace 
10:00 (S 9:00) 
J. Jacobsen 
1 South Rosa Rd.; 53705 

Madison-Holy Cross 
8:15 & 10:30 (S 8:15 & 10:00) 
M. Bartels, B. Tweit 
2670 Milwaukee St.; 53704 

Madison-Our Saviour's 
8:00, 10:15, Sat 5:30 

(S 9:00, Sat. 5:30) 
B. Homan 
1201 Droster Rd.; 53716 
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Okauchee-Holy Trinity 
7:45 & 10:15 (S 7:45 & 9:30) 
Vacant 
35181 Wisconsin Ave. 
Mail: PO Box 146; 53069 

Oregon-Faith 
9:00, Thu. 7:00 
R.Lehmann 
143 Washington St.; 53575 

Portage-St. Paul's 
9:00 
M. Doepel 
W11355 Hwy. 127 (6 miles NW) 
Mail: 212 Volk St.; 53901 

West Bend-Trinity 
8:00, 10:00, Mon.7:15 
K. Schmidt 
1268 Pleasant Valley Rd 
Mail: 1288 Pleasant Valley Rd.; 

53095 
Wisconsin Dells-Newport 

10:30 
M. Doepel 
N8794 Peterson Rd., (4 miles E) 
Mail: 212 Volk, Portage; 53901 



Amherst Junction -Our Savior's 
9:30 
W. Mack 
Hwy. 161 & Co.«T" Rd. 
Mail: N6916 TU Lakes Rd., 

Scandinavia; 54977 
Bloomer-Good Shepherd 

10:30 (S 10:00) 
Vacant 
1504 Vine St.; 54724 

Clintonville-St. Paul 
8:00; Mon 7:00 
R. Holtz 
31 N. ParkSt 
P.O. Box 115.; 54929 

Eau Claire -Ascension 
9:00 ; Mon. 6:30 
P. Sullivan 
1500 Peterson Ave.; 54703 

Eau Claire -Concordia 

CffiGUIT 5 

WISCONSIN 

Elderon-Our Savior's 
9:00 
T. Skaaland 
Hwy. 49 N. 54429 

Green Bay -Christ the King 
9:00 
L. Buelow 
1700 Cardinal Lane 
Mail: P.O. Box 11473; 54307 

lola-Redeemer 
9:00 
H. Vetter 
125 North St. 
Mail: 295 E. State St.; 54945 

Marinette-First Trinity 
8:00 & 10:00 (S 9:00) 
F. Stubenvoll 
920 Wells St.; 54143 

Omro-Messiah 
9:00 

8:00 & 10:30 (S 9:00; Mon. 7:00) 
F. Theiste 

W. Mack 
H.B. Patch Elem. School 
607 Tyler Ave. 3715 London Rd.; 54701 

Eau Claire -Pinehurst 
9:00; Mon. 6:30 
M. Rogers 
3304 Fern Ct.; 54703 

Ames-Bethany 
Sat. 7:30 
M. Roesch 
3113 Diamond St; 50010 

Calmar-Trinity 
8:30 or 10:30 (S 8:00 or 10:00)* 
H. Abrahamson 
306 Clark St. 
Mail: 611 W. Court St., 

New Hampton; 50659 
Forest City-Forest 

9:00 
Vacant 
546 West M. St. 

Mail: 1232 Snowdon Dr, Oshkosh, 
54904 

Shawano-St. Martin 
9:00 
R.MacKain 
W8302 Belle Plaine Ave.; 54166 

cmcurr 6 

IOWA 

Hampton-Bethany 
10:00 
M. Roesch 
Mail: 3109 Diamond St., Ames, 

50010 
Indianola-Good Shepherd 

9:00 
R. Harting 
202 North Kenwood 
Mail: P.O. Box 452; 50125 

Lake Mills-Lake Mills 
8:30 
A. Merseth 
1st Ave. N. & Grant St. 
Mail: 106 13th St. S., Northwood; 50459 
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Lake Mills-Lime Creek 
9:45 
A. Merseth 
4 miles N. 1 mile W. 
Mail: 106 13th St. S., Northwood; 50459 

Lawler-Saude * 
K. Dethlefsen 
10 miles N. 1 mile W. 
Mail: 2940 Stevens Trail; 52154 

New Hampton-Jerico * 
K. Dethlefsen 
9 miles N. 3 miles E. 
Mail: 2940 Stevens Tr., Lawler; 

52154 
New Hampton-Redeemer 

8:30 or 10:30 (S 8:00 or 10:00)* 
H. Abrahamson 
West Court & North Sherman 
Mail: 611 West Court St.; 50659 

Newton -Grace 
8:15 
M.Hoesch 
8141"t Ave. E. 
Mail: 3109 Diamond St., Ames, 

50010 
Northwood-First Shell Rock 

10:30 
A. Merseth 
Central & 15th 
Mail: 106 13th St. S.; 50459 

Northwood-Son1ber 
9:45 
A. Merseth 
10 miles W. 1 n1ile S. 
Mail: 106 13th St. S.; 50459 

Parkersburg-Faith 
10:15 (S 9:30) 
D. Larson 
608 Sixth St.; 50665 

Riceville-Immanuel 
8:30 
A. Merseth 
Main St. 
Mail: 106 13th St. S., Northwood; 50459 

Scarville-Center * 
T. Rank 
5 miles S. 
Mail: PO Box 105; 50473 

Scarville-Scarville Synod * 
T. Rank 
411 Logan St. 
Mail: PO Box 105; 50473 

Thompson -Zion 
10:30 
Vacant 
226 Monroe St. 

Thornton -Richland 
10:30 (S 9:30) 
J. Gernander 
300ElmSt. 
Mail: PO Box 86; 504 79 

Waterloo-Pilgrim 
9:00 
G. Haugen 
3815 Ansborough Ave.; 50701 

Waterville-East Paint Creek 
10:00 (S 9:30) * 
Vacant 
1151 Gronna Dr. 
Mail: 1176 Waterville Rd.; 52170 

Waukon-West Paint Creek 
10:00 (S 9:30) * 
Vacant 
Elan Dr. 
Mail: 1176 Waterville Rd., 

Waterville; 52170 
Williamsburg-St. Tin1othy 

9:00 
K.Heck 
Hwy 149 North & 1-80 (2141 PAve.) 
Mail: PO Box 766, Williamsburg 

52361 

MINNESOTA 

Albert Lea-Our Savior's 
8:00 & 10:45 (S 9:00) 
W. Halvorson 
320 W. College St.; 56007 
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Hartland -Hartland 
10:45 (S 9:00) 
D. Schmidt 
605 Lincoln 
Mail: PO Box 18 8; 56042 

Manchester-Manchester 
9:00 (S 10:30) 
D. Schmidt 
Mail: PO Box 188, Hartland; 56042 



CIRCUIT 7 

MINNESOTA 

Audubon-Immanuel 
9:30 
E. Geistfeld 
USHwylO 
Mail: Box 187; 56511 

Bagley-Our Savior's 
9:00 
S. Stafford 
5 miles W. on Hwy 2 
Mail: PO Box 26, Lengby; 56651 

Crookston-Grace 
10:45 
Vacant 
1221 Barette St. 
Mail: Box 316; 56716 

EastGrandForks-River Heights 
11:00 (S 9:00) 
R. Preus 
2214 lOth Ave. NW; 56721 

Fertile-First Evanger 
9:00 
Vacant 
Washington & Elm Sts. 
Mail: Box 477; 56540 

Grygla-St. Petri * 
S. Sparley 
3 miles W, 1 mile N 
Mail: Rt. 1 Box 141, Oklee 56742 

Hawley-Our Savior's 
9:00 or 11:00 (S 9:00 or 10:30)* 
C. Howley 
Sixth & Joseph 
Mail: Box 248, Ulen; 56585 

Lengby-St. Paul 
10:30 
S. Stafford 
Mail: PO Box 26; 56651 

Oklee-Oak Park * 
S. Sparley 
8 miles N. 4 miles E 
Mail: Rt. 1 Box 141; 56742 

Trail-Mt. Olive * 
S. Sparley 
Mail: Rt.l Box 141, Oklee 56742 

Trail-Nazareth* 
S.Sparley 
9 miles N. 2 miles E 
Mail: Rt.l Box 141, Oklee 56742 

Ulen-Calvary 
9:00 or 11:00 (S 9:00 or 10:30)* 
C. Howley 
207 First Street NW 
Mail: PO Box 326; 56585 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Mayville-First American 
11:00 
R. Benson 
3rd Avenue. & 2"d Street 
Mail: P.O. Box 541; 58257 
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CffiCUIT8 

MINNESOTA 

Apple Valley-Heritage 
10:30 (S 9:30) 
D. Hoyord 
13401 Johnny Cake Ridge Rd.; 

55124 
Belview-Our Savior's 

8:30 or 11:00 (S 8:30 or 10:00)* 
D. Faugstad 
306MainSt. 
Mail: P.O. Box 187; 56214 

Belview-Rock Dell 
8:30 or 11:00 (S 8:30 or 10:00)* 
D. Faugstad 
4 miles NE 
Mail: P.O. Box 187; 56214 

Clara City-Faith 
9:00 
C. Wosje 
4015 SE 115thAve. 
PO Box 796; 56222 

Cold Spring-Gloria Dei 
10:00 (S 9:00) 
M. Thompson 
601 Red River Ave. S; 56320 

Cottonwood-English 
9:00 
J. Smith 
110 East Main St. 
Mail: PO Box 37; 56229 

Gaylord-Norwegian Grove 
9:00 or 10: 30* 
C. Ferkenstad 
6 miles South 
Mail: RR 3, Box 40, St. Peter; 56082 

Golden Valley-King of Grace 
8:15 & 10:45 (S 8:15 & 10:00) 
E. Ekhoff 
6000 Duluth St; 55422 

212 

J~-Rose Dell Trinity 
8:30 
P. Fries 
4th & Poorbough Ave. 
Mail: PO Box 506, Luveme; 56156 

Luverne -Bethany 
10:15 
P. Fries 
720N. Kniss 
Mail: PO Box 506; 56156 

Mankato-Mt. Olive 
8:30 & 10:45, Mon. 7:00 
(S 8:30 & 10:00, Mon 7:00) 
D. Basel, D. Moldstad 
1123 Marsh St.; 56001 

North Mankato- Peace 
10:00 
R.Otto 
Hoover Elementary School 
Mail: 1049 Oak Terrace Dr; 56003 

Princeton-Bethany 
8:15 & 10:45 (S 9:00) 
R. Lawson 
801 South Sixth St.; 55371 

Princeton-Our Savior's 
9:45 (S 9:15) 
T. Zenda 
18977 17th St.; 55371 

St. Peter-Norseland 
9:00 or 10:30* 
C. Ferkenstad 
8 miles NW 
Mail: RR. 3 Box 40; 56082 

Tracy-Zion 
10:15 
N. Madson 
2nd & Emory; 56175 



Cape Girardeau -Scriptural 
10:00 
H. Gieschen 
3587 County Rd. 635; 63701 

Carthage-Faith 
10:30 
R.Waters 
2134 South Grand; 64836 

Richardson -Good Shepherd 
10:30 
E. Gernander 
650 W. Campbell Rd.; 75080 

Fort Mojave-Family of God 
10:15 
Vacant 
1863 Pandaro Rd. 
Mail: PO Box 10949; 86427 

Bell Gardens-Christ the King 
9:00 
Vacant 
6541 Eastern Ave.; 90201 

Bishop-Our Savior 
9:30 
B. Schwark 
162 Sneden St.; 93514 

Escondido-St. Paul 
10:00 
T. Gullixson 

cmcurr 9 

MISSOURI 

Jefferson City-Peace 
8:30 
M. Brooks 
7808 New Church Rd.; 65101 

Piedmont -Grace 
10:30 
Vacant 
114 E. Green St.; 63957 

TEXAS 
San Antonio-Faith 

10:15 
M. Crick 
14819 Jones-Maltsberger Rd.; 78232 

CffiCUIT 10 

ARIZONA 

Lake Havasu City-Our Saviour 
8:00 & 10:30 (S 9:00, Apr-Oct) 
H. Huhnerkoch 
3163 Maricopa Ave.; 86406 

Scottsdale-Redeemer 
9:00 
K. Brumble 
7670 E. Jomax Rd.; 85255 

CALIFORNIA 
Fillmore-Wayfarers' 

9:30 
J. Schmidt 
461 3rd St.; 93015 

Irvine-Faith 
9:30 
W. Stehr 
13955 Yale Ave.; 92620 

Irvine-Asian Mission 
12:00 (Korean) 
Y.Kim 

1418 Bear Valley Pkwy.; 92027 13955 Yale Ave.; 92620 
Windsor-Christ 

10:15 
K. Anderson 
125 Shiloh Rd.; 95492 
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Grants Pass-Our Savior 
9:30 
J. Ruppel 
230 Buysman Way; 97526 

Gresham-Saved By Grace 
9:30 
T. Bartels 
2010 NE Division St.; 97030 

Hillsboro-Reformation 
10:00 
W. Anderson 

CffiCUIT 11 
OREGON 

Klamath Falls -Christ 
9:30 
J. Braun 
127 N. Spring St.; 97601 

Myrtle Creek-St. Matthew 
11:00 
F. Fiedler III 
436 Old N. Pacific Hwy.; 97457 

Sutherlin -Christ 
8:30 

4435 SE Tualatin Valley Hwy; 97123 
F. Fiedler III 
Box R 161 2nd St. 

Hood River-Concordia 
9:00 
C. Hahnke 
1107 Pine St.; 97031 

West Jordan-Hope 
8:00 & 10:30 
G.Sahlstrom 
2930 W. 9000 S.; 84088 

Mail: PO Box R ; 97 4 79 
'Ihe Dalles-Bethany 

11:00 
C. Hahnke 
2323 East 12th St.; 97058 

UTAH 

WASHINGTON 

Gig Harbor-Harbor Trinity 
9:00 
A. Hamilton 
8209 Stinson Avenue; 98335 

Lakewood-Lakewood 
11:00 (S 10:00) 
Vacant 
10202 112th St. SW; 98498 

Mt. Vernon-St. Luke 
10:30 (S 9:30) 
J. Dalke 
1524 E. Blackburn Rd.; 98274 

Putt Hadlock-IIope 
Services suspended 

for more information contact 
Parkland Lutheran Church 
(Tacoma) 
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Port Orchard-Bethany 
8:15 & 11:00 
C.Keeler, A. Pittenger 
151 Tremont W.; 98366 

Tacoma-Parkland 
8:30& 11:00 
G. Obenberger, A. Ring 
12309 Pacific Ave. 
Mail: PO Box 44006; 98444 

Yelm -Our Redeemer 
10:30 (8 9:00 & Thurs. 7:00) 
V. Settje 
i:W Yeim Ave. E; 98597 

* Consult pastor for Service time 



PERIODICALS 

LUTHERAN SENTINEL 
Published Monthly 
Subscription-$8.00 per year 
Blanket subscription-$6.00 per year 
Bulk subscriptions (20 copies & over)-$6.00 per year 
Send to: The Lutheran Sentinel 

P.O. Box 3 
Lake, Mills, IA 50450 

LUTHERAN SYNOD QUARTERLY 
Published Quarterly 
Subscription-$10.00 per year 
Send to: Lutheran Synod Quarterly 

Bethany Lutheran Theological Seminary 
6 Browns Court 
Mankato, MN 56001 

ANNuAL SYNOD CONVENTION REPORT 
Order through: Lutheran Synod Book Company-$6.50 

700 Luther Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001 

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN SYNOD FOUNDATION 

"The Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation is established for the purpose 
of soliciting gifts, other than for current operating funds, for the Synod, its 
agencies, and as requested, for its congregations and for the theological 
seminary, college, and other institutions related to the Synod. The Foundation 
is to encourage the making of wills, gift annuity agreements, trust 
agreements, insurance contracts, etc., under which the Synod or any of its parts 
or agencies may become an actual or contingent beneficiary."-(Adopted by the 
Evangelical Lutheran Synod, 1969.) 

IS GOD'S WILL INCLUDED IN YOUR WILL? 
The Foundation is ready to serve those who are concerned about their 

responsibility to our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ, as well as those who are 
concerned about the needs of our church. It stands ready to serve as no other 
agency can. 
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A GIFTS AND DONATIONS OF MONEY 
The Evangelical Lutheran Synod Foundation is ready to receive, 

administer, and distribute gifts of money designated for the general work of 
our church or any specific phase of its activities. Such gifts may be designated 
for any purpose the donor may desire, and they maybe divided in any way. 

In keeping with the door's wishes, the principal may be used for the purpose 
designated, or the principal may be held intact while the income alone is used 
for the work of the church. 

B. GIFTS OF REAL ESTATE AND OTHER PROPERTY 
The Foundation is ready to receive, administer, and distribute gifts of real 

estate, securities, or other property designated for the general work of our 
church or for any specific phase of its activities (including local 
congregations). If desired the Foundation is ready to make arrangements 
whereby the donor will receive a gift annuity agreement income for life or a 
life income agreement income. 

C. BEQUESTS THROUGH WILLS 
In a very real sense your will is a continuation of your own life and 

influence. It is an expression of your wishes, a document that acts as your 
representative in distributing the material things you leave behind. Only you 
know how you wish them distributed. Only you have the power and the right to 
make your own will. If you don't have a will, the state makes a will for you 
through the laws that apply when a person leaves no will. 

The E.L.S. Foundation urgently appeals to you: Make a will, and make your 
will a "Christian" will by remembering the Lord Jesus Christ and His Church 
in it. 

Gift Annuity Agreements, Life Income Gift Agreements, Life Insurance 
Gifts, Gifts Through Trusts, and Memorial Gifts, may be used; and the 
Foundation is ready to serve you or counsel with you. 

LEGAL FORM FOR GIFI'S To THE EVANGELICAL 

LUTHERAN SYNOD FOUNDATION 
THROUGH YOUR WILL 
(check with your attorney) 

I give, devise and bequeath to the EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN SYNOD FOUNDATION (a Minnesota 

Corporation): 

(insert sum of money or description of property which sum, or 
property, or proceeds thereof) 

to be used as directed by the donor or, if no direction as to use is 
stated, as its Board of Directors may determine. 

Send inquiries to: 
DEFERRED GIVING COUNSEWR 

6 Browll.S Comt 
Mankato, Minnesota 56001 
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